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?‘ ﬁve-Year Financial Summary

T EHBEBRE

4

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=1T—HILLFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B —T--% ZE-FF “FT-NF ZT-)\F

Profitability data BRELYE
(RMB million) (AR¥EBER)

Revenue Yezs 274.3 3135 111.9 169.7 164.5
Gross profit 5 35.5 88.5 18.0 30.1 395
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EE)/FE (167.0) 9.2 (108.8) (314.4) (275.3)
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)

Gross profit margin EF= 13.0% 28.2% 16.1% 17.7% 24.0%
Net (loss)/profit margin F(B8E)/FEx (60.9)% 2.9% (97.2%  (1853)%  (167.4)%

Assets and liabilities data BEREERE

(RMB million) (AR®EETR)
Non-current assets FnBEE 207.3 160.9 92.8 153.9 4419
Current assets MENEE 708.1 4158 102.8 120.5 128.8
Current liabilities nBAE 252.5 268.5 2349 2233 251.9
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 18.0 234 5.6 3.1 4.8
Shareholders’ equity RS 644.8 284.8 (44.9) 48.0 313.9
Asset and working EEREEES

capital data g
Current asset ratios (%) MEEELE(%) 77.4% 72.1% 52.5% 43.9% 22.6%
Current ratios (time) TMELCR () 2.8x 1.5% 0.4x 0.5x 0.5x
Gearing ratios (%) TR & (%) 40.8% 100.2% (523.8)% 466.4% 80.9%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings
Limited (“Golden Solar” or the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the financial report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

In 2021, due to the impact of the novel coronavirus
("“COVID-19") pandemic, some of the Group’s customers
of the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM") business
transferred orders originally placed with Southeast Asian
and Indian manufacturers to manufacturers in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). In 2022, suppliers in Southeast Asia
and India resumed production and supply, resulting in some
orders redirected back to those regions. In addition, due to
macroeconomic factors such as domestic inflation and sluggish
consumer demand in the United States of America (“US"),
the orders returning to the PRC were limited, ultimately
leading to sharp price-cutting competition among domestic
manufacturers and impacting the Group’s gross profit. As a
result, the revenue of the Group decreased by approximately
12.5% to approximately RMB274.3 million and the gross
profit of the Group during the year decreased by 59.9% to
approximately RMB35.5 million. Besides, the Group recorded a
net loss of approximately RMB167.0 million during the year, as
compared with the net profit of approximately RMB9.2 million
of last year. The increase in net loss of the Group during the
year was mainly due to the grant of a total of 54,000,000
share options by the Company on 21 January 2022 with
an equity-settled share-based payments of approximately
RMB119.6 million during the year and the Group increased
its research and development investment in the photovoltaic
products business during the year to improve products and
prepare for mass production after relocation to the new plant,
resulting in an increase of approximately RMB33.5 million in
research and development costs.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

The Group successfully transformed from a traditional
manufacturer to a renewable energy technology company
within 2021 as scheduled. The first production facility of
cast monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”) wafers in Xuzhou
has successfully achieved commercial mass production in
the second half of 2021. In 2022, the Group has taken
another step in the vertical integration of its supply chain
and has entered into a production facility lease agreement
in relation to the leasing of a 250 megawatts high efficiency
heterojunction (“HJT"”) solar cell production line and related
auxiliary production facilities located in Putian, Fujian Province.
This new business of Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono
HJT solar cells and modules (collectively as “Photovoltaic
Products”) brought a new source of income to the Group. The
sales of Photovoltaic Products business in 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB70.7 million, reached approximately 2.8
times of sales amount of approximately RMB24.8 million in
2021, indicating an increasing market’s acceptance of our new
Photovoltaic Products.

In the solar cell and module business, our Cast-mono HIJT solar
cells” conversion efficiency for mass production has reached
24.8%, whereas our tested production of Czochralski method-
based monocrystalline (“CZ-mono”) HIT solar cells’ conversion
efficiency reached 25.2%. Excellent conversion efficiency
performance and stable performance have been recognized,
especially by European and American customers who value
quality. Leveraging these overseas customer base, our
international sales team has engaged in in-depth discussions
with one of the leading chain home product retail brands in
Europe, and is planning to launch our new consumer-end
module products in 2023. Meanwhile, the Group will also
collaborate with one of the largest recreational vehicle retail
companies in the US to provide our rollable, foldable and
bendable new flexible or lightweight modules that are suitable
for different application scenarios in the US, Europe, and
Australia.
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In the cast-mono wafer business, in addition to continuous
investment in yield rate and quality improvement, the Group
has already started preliminary cooperation with multiple
suppliers who have upgraded to advanced technologies such
as HJT and Tunnel Oxide Passivated Contact (“TOPCon")
to develop corresponding Cast-mono N-type silicon wafer
products. Compared to CZ-mono N-type silicon wafers, Cast-
mono N-type silicon wafers with more cost advantages are
expected to shorten the cost gap between advanced and
existing mainstream technologies and accelerate technological
transition. As the market gradually transitions to technology
such as HJT and TOPCon technology and has higher demand
for low-cost and high-efficiency N-type silicon wafers, the
Group anticipates continued growth and higher contributions
from its Photovoltaic Products business in 2023.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR DM

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB274.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 12.5% when compared to the amount
of approximately RMB313.5 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. The gross profit of the Group during the
year decreased by 59.9% to approximately RMB35.5 million
and the gross profit margin of the Group during the year
also decreased to approximately 13.0% as compared to
approximately 28.2% in 2021.

The decrease in revenue and gross profit was primarily
attributed to the following factors:

i) In 2021, due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
some of the Group’s customers of the OEM business
transferred orders originally placed with Southeast
Asian and Indian manufacturers to PRC manufacturers.
In 2022, suppliers in Southeast Asia and India resumed
production and supply, resulting in some orders
redirected back to those regions. In addition, due to
macroeconomic factors such as domestic inflation
and sluggish consumer demand in the US, the orders
returning to the PRC were limited, ultimately leading
to sharp price-cutting competition among domestic
manufacturers and impacting the Group’s gross profit.

ii) In 2021, there was a one-off provision of technology
licensing service income of RMB20 million in the
Photovoltaic Products segment.

During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB167.0 million, as compared with the
net profit of approximately RMB9.2 million of last year. The
increase in net loss of the Group during the year was mainly
due to i) the grant of a total of 54,000,000 share options by
the Company on 21 January 2022 with an equity-settled share-
based payments of approximately RMB119.6 million during the
year. Such expense is a non-cash accounting item which has no
impact on the cash flow of the Group; ii) the Group increased
its research and development investment in the Photovoltaic
Products business during the year to improve products and
prepare for mass production after relocation to the new plant,
resulting in a year-on-year increase of approximately RMB33.5
million in research and development costs; iii) there was a one-
off provision of technology licensing service income of RMB20
million in 2021; and iv) there was a one-off compensation for
land resumption recorded in other income of approximately
RMB22.2 million in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bit ¥ 5] B
Revenue by Product Category BEREINENH WS
Increase/
2022 2021  (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB'000 % change
g,
—g-= —TE-—F OB
AREBTRT ARETRT % & B
Revenue (Boree Products) W (BEARES) 845 1,300 (35.0)%
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) W (AR2BES) 15,411 5,663 172.1%
Revenue (OEM Business) Iz (OEMZEETE) 187,363 261,709 (28.4)%
Revenue (Photovoltaic Products) Wes (FIRES) 70,658 44,834 57.6%
Revenue (Total) sk (4%8) 274,277 313,506 (12.5)%
Boree Products BEABER

Revenue from Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”) decreased by 35.0% to
approximately RMBO0.8 million during the year (2021: RMB1.3
million) because of the decrease in online sales.

Graphene-based Products

The revenue of graphene-based ethylene-vinyl acetate (“EVA")
foam material (“Graphene-based EVA Foam Material”) and
slippers (“Graphene-based Slippers”), graphene deodorizing
and sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners
(“Sterilizing Chips”) and graphene air sterilizers (collectively
as "Graphene-based Products”) increased by approximately
RMB9.7 million to approximately RMB15.4 million during the
year (2021: RMB5.7 million) as the Group has successfully
designed and developed air purification device and sterilizing
modules for air conditioning system and delivered to customer
commencing from second half of 2021 and the sales of such
modules amounted to approximately RMB14.0 million during
the year.

OEM Business

The revenue of OEM business decreased by approximately
RMB74.3 million to approximately RMB187.4 million during
the year (2021: RMB261.7 million). During the year, suppliers
in Southeast Asia and India resumed production and supply,
resulting in some orders redirected back to those regions. In
addition, due to macroeconomic factors such as domestic
inflation and sluggish consumer demand in the US, the orders
returning to the PRC were limited, ultimately leading to sharp
price-cutting competition among domestic manufacturers and
resulting in a decrease in both revenue and gross profit margin
of the OEM business during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Photovoltaic Products

In 2021, Golden Solar Silicon Science & Technology (Xu
Zhou) Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company was set up to manufacture Cast-mono wafers and
the first production facility of Cast-mono wafers in Xuzhou
has successfully achieved commercial mass production in
the second half of 2021. In 2022, the Group’s Photovoltaic
Products business has taken another step in the vertical
integration of its supply chain. Golden Solar (Quanzhou)
New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has entered into a production
facility lease agreement in relation to the leasing of a 250
megawatts high efficiency HJT solar cell production line
and related auxiliary production facilities located in Putian,
Fujian Province. This new business of Photovoltaic Products
brought a new source of income to the Group. The sales
in the year amounted to approximately RMB70.7 million,
increased by 57.6% as compared to 2021 (2021: RMB44.8
million). Excluding the technology licensing service income
of RMB20 million in 2021, sales amount of Photovoltaic
Products business in 2022 reached approximately 2.8 times
of sales amount of approximately RMB24.8 million in 2021.
As the market gradually transitions to technology such as
HJT and TOPCon technology and has higher demand for low-
cost and high-efficiency N-type silicon wafers, the Group
anticipates continued growth and higher contributions from its
Photovoltaic Products business.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses increased by
10.9% to approximately RMB11.7 million as compared with
that of last year (2021: RMB10.6 million), which accounted for
4.3% (2021: 3.4%) of the Group’s revenue. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in both local and overseas
transportation fee and inspection fee due to lockdowns and
stricter COVID-19 epidemic prevention requirements.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded an increase of
approximately RMB152.4 million or 172.1% during the year to
approximately RMB240.9 million as compared with that of last
year (2021: RMB88.5 million), which was mainly attributable to (i)
increase in equity-settled share-based payments of approximately
RMB113.6 million in relation to 54,000,000 share options granted
by the Company on 21 January 2022; (ii) increase in research and
development costs of approximately RMB33.5 million; and (iii)
increase in wages and salaries of approximately RMB5.4 million as
more senior management and administrative staff were recruited
to support the new business of Photovoltaic Products.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash outflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB78.7 million (2021:
RMB63.1 million). As at 31 December 2022, cash and bank
balances were approximately RMB354.7 million, approximately
2.6 times of the cash and bank balances as at the end of last
year (2021: RMB135.8 million). As at 31 December 2022,
around 78.9%, 5.0% and 14.4% of the Group’s cash and bank
balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the short-
term borrowings of the Group were approximately RMB91.0
million (2021: RMB100.4 million). All loans were denominated in
Renminbi, with fixed interest rates and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was
40.8% (2021: 100.2%). Gearing ratio was calculated as total
debts divided by the total equity. Total debts refer to the total
liabilities minus the sum of tax payable and deferred tax liability.

Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2022, the Company had 1,661,909,608
Shares in issue and a paid-up capital of approximately
RMB110,606,000. During the year, the Company issued a
total of 50,000 Shares to share option holders who exercised
their share options, and issued a total of 50,000,000 Shares
in respect of the completion of placing on 14 January 2022.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 30
December 2021 and 14 January 2022, the Company placed
a total of 50,000,000 new Shares through a placing agent
to two placees namely, 40,000,000 Shares to Kwok Tai East
International Group Limited and 10,000,000 Shares to Hwabao
Trust Co., Ltd at the placing price of HK$10 per placing share
(the “2022 Placing”). As at 31 December 2022, the Company
had 1,711,959,608 Shares in issue and a paid-up capital of
approximately RMB113,799,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the bills payables were secured by
a pledge of the Group’s deposits amounting to approximately
RMB1.4 million (2021: RMBO0.4 million). As at 31 December
2022, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured by
a pledge of the Group’s buildings with carrying amount
of approximately RMB1.9 million (2021: RMB2.2 million),
leasehold land of right-of-use assets and the leasehold land of
investment properties with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB3.9 million (2021: RMB4.0 million) and approximately
RMB35.7 million (2021: RMB35.2 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the building of investment properties
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB11.1 million
was pledged to an independent third party for a loan facility
of RMB20 million. The loan was not yet utilised as at 31
December 2021. This loan facility was expired in March 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

There was no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the revenue of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of
approximately 930 employees (2021: 780 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2022,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB218,154,000 (2021: RMB78,354,000). The Group's
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”) on 2
July 2021 to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
employees.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and
Placing

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 24
March 2021 and 19 April 2021, Mr. Lin Dongliang, an
independent subscriber, subscribed for a total of 20,000,000
new Shares of US$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$4
per subscription share (the “Share Subscription”) and the
Company placed a total of 57,000,000 new Shares through a
placing agent at placing price of HK$4 per placing share (the
“2021 Placing”). the Share Subscription and 2021 Placing
were completed on 19 April 2021. The closing market price
was HK$4.76 per Share on the date on which the terms of
the Share Subscription and 2021 Placing were fixed. The gross
proceeds from the Share Subscription and 2021 Placing were
approximately HK$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB67,494,000) and approximately HK$228,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB192,359,000) respectively,
and the net proceeds (after deducting the relevant expenses
incurred in the Share Subscription and 2021 Placing) were
approximately HK$79,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB67,242,000) and approximately HK$226,720,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB191,280,000) respectively.
The net subscription price and net placing price, after
deducting relevant expenses, were approximately HK$3.99 per
subscription share and HK$3.98 per placing share, respectively.

The Directors considered that the Share Subscription and 2021
Placing represented an opportunity to strengthen the Group’s
financial position and raise additional funding for the business
operations of the Group without any interest burden, as well
as to enlarge shareholders’ base of the Company which may in
turn enhance the liquidity of the Shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENRR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) BYFE OBl (&)
Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and RORBEENGEESHEMESRIERSE
Placing (continued) Ag (&)

RZTEBE-_—F+_A=1+—8 BRHRAE
FEF_E - —FRESFHEMAFSHIBFHE

The utilisation of the net proceeds of the Share Subscription
and 2021 Placing as at 31 December 2022 is set out as

follows: B RBEREINT
Amount of the Amount of the Balance of the
net proceeds  net proceeds  net proceeds
utilised during utilised during un-utilised
Intended the year ended the year ended as at
use of the 31 December  31December 31 December
net proceeds 2021 2022 2022
Bz az 1
—B--F —E-CF —E-CF
t=A=t-8 +2A=t-8 +2A=t-8
LEEEHR LEEEHA ABA
FERERE FEREFE FERERE  MERERE
Nature :3:1 RERZ £ £ g4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL ARETT AREFTL ARETTL
Development of photovolatic and BEANRIEBES
related business 134,990 96,181 38,309 -
Settlement of other payables and GEEMERNTER
short-term borrowings HHEE 42,184 30,656 11,528 -
Settlement of other payables for BERERECAMENFE
the casting silicon furnaces 37,460 37,460 - -
General working capital —REEERS 43,888 43,888 - -
Total: @it 258,522 208,185 50,337 -

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 30 mARRBHA-ZE-_—4F+_-_A=1+H
December 2021 and 14 January 2022, the 2022 Placing was B HF A TEBEMAMATEE

completed on 14 January 2022. The closing market price was TE T CFREEFEECR _ZE-__F—AH

HK$10.3 per Share on the date on which the terms of the
2022 Placing were fixed. The gross proceeds and net proceeds
(after deducting the placing commission and other related
expenses and professional fees) from the 2022 Placing were
approximately HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB409,050,000) and approximately HK$497,850,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB407,291,000) respectively.
The net placing price, after deducting relevant expenses, was
approximately HK$9.96 per placing share.

THARK R oE - —FREEEKRHE
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FRESHEMBHRBEBLTERIAFE
(MREEReREMEERIREEXSR
%)% Bl 4 A500,000,00058 7T (HE R
#3 AN R #:409,050,0007T ) 497,850,000
BT (IHE R4 AR®407,291,0007T) °
MBREEAY R FREENABRES
B%159.96/% 7T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis'

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and
Placing (continued)

The Directors considered that the 2022 Placing represented a
good opportunity for the Company to raise additional capital
and hence strengthen the Company’s capital base for the
business operations of the Group without incurring interest
costs.

The utilisation of the net proceeds of the 2022 Placing as at 31
December 2022 is set out as follows:

Nature HE

-wmagf

?

BEEENWmR DM

B E R ()
RORBEARRESERNESHRATFE
R& (&)

EERR - _FEREFE/ERTA
SEFNERNRE KMMEARFE
AER ARAKEEKLE MASEL
FBBA -

R_FB__F+_RA=+—RH =T
FREFEMSHIBFENS BB

LUNNE
Amount of the Balance of the
net proceeds net proceed un-
utilised during utilised
Intended use  the year ended as at
of the net 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2022 2022
Bz i
—E-CF —E-CF
+=A=t-B +=A=t-A
LtEECEA *BA
RENREFRE FERERE FRERERE
RERR 8 weR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETR

Procurement costs of raw materials and 4 EB &R R AGEATH
subcontracting fee for production of the R K RER AR NI E

Cast-mono wafers and solar modules 156,952 88,297 68,655
Modification of the casting silicon BIEENE

furnaces 61,358 2,016 59,342
Procurement of other peripheral REBEMABEESRE

production equipment 49,086 5,889 43,197
Procurement of production equipment for #8814 48 1 4 B 2%

flexible modules 14,726 2,763 11,963
Procurement costs of raw materials for 21 4 (440 B £ H0 R B A AR

the flexible modules 2,454 2,454 -
Potential strategic equity investment BEFBRERE NEUEE

to establish a Cast-mono HIT HITR Rt J 28 4 B3 25 1

photovoltaic cell and module

manufacturing facility 40,905 - 40,905
General working capital —REEES 81,810 69,345 12,465
Total: @t 407,291 170,764 236,527
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and
Placing (continued)
Note:

1. Itis expected that the remaining balances of the un-utilised net
proceeds will be utilised before 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Photovoltaic Products Business

In 2022, due to different levels of COVID-19 prevention
measures in various regions leading to a temporal production
suspension and delays in the construction of the power
supporting facilities for the new factory in Xuzhou,
Photovoltaic Products business was also affected in various
ways. The substation construction which is the most critical
factor for the relocation of the new factory is expected
to be completed in the second quarter of 2023, and the
Group expects to relocate cast-mono wafers production
centre immediately after the completion of the construction.
Nevertheless, Photovoltaic Products business recorded revenue
of approximately RMB70.7 million in 2022, an increase
of approximately 57.6% as compared to 2021. Excluding
the technology licensing service income of RMB20 million
in 2021, sales amount for Photovoltaic Products business
in 2022 reached approximately 2.8 times of sales amount
of approximately RMB24.8 million in 2021, indicating an
increasing market's acceptance of our new Photovoltaic
Products.

In the second half of 2022, advanced technologies such
as heterojunction and TOPCon that mainly use N-type
silicon wafers gradually increased their share in the global
photovoltaic production capacity, and application-oriented
photovoltaic products such as Building Integrated Photovoltaics
received more market attention. Accordingly, our research and
development and capital investment in 2022 mainly focused
on:

(1) improving the vyield rate and quality of N-type cast-
mono wafers and impurity removal technology; and

(2)  developing moulds for new flexible and lightweight
modules, constructing pilot lines, and developing
encapsulation technology.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Photovoltaic Products Business (continued)

In the solar cell and module business, our Cast-mono HIJT
solar cells’ conversion efficiency for mass production has
reached 24.8%, whereas our tested production of CZ-mono
HIT solar cells’ conversion efficiency reached 25.2%. Excellent
conversion efficiency performance and stable performance
have been recognized, especially by European and American
customers who value quality. Leveraging these overseas
customer base, our international sales team has engaged
in in-depth discussions with one of the leading chain home
product retail brands in Europe, and is planning to launch our
new consumer-end module products in 2023. Meanwhile, the
Group will also collaborate with one of the largest recreational
vehicle retail companies in the US to provide our rollable,
foldable and bendable new flexible or lightweight modules
that are suitable for different application scenarios in the
US, Europe, and Australia. To achieve these plans, the Group
currently plans to achieve the commercialization of B-to-C
products such as flexible and lightweight modules according to
the following schedule in 2023:

) establishment of a flexible production line in the second
quarter of 2023;

(2)  sample delivery and product fine-tuning in mid-2023;
and

(3)  formal production and supply in the second half of
2023.

In the cast-mono wafer business, in addition to continuous
investment in yield rate and quality improvement, the Group
has already started preliminary cooperation with multiple
suppliers who have upgraded to advanced technologies such
as heterojunction and TOPCon to develop corresponding Cast-
mono N-type silicon wafer products. Compared to CZ-mono
N-type silicon wafers, Cast-mono N-type silicon wafers with
more cost advantages are expected to shorten the cost gap
between advanced and existing mainstream technologies and
accelerate technological transition.

Other Business

Due to the domestic inflation and sluggish consumer demand
in the US, the Group expects a mild decrease in the revenue
of OEM business in 2023. For Graphene-based Products,
the Group would focus to sell the sterilizing modules for air
conditioning system in 2023.
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The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the then
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) which was
effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company made specific enquiries of all the Directors and each
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the financial year
ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

o Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (resigned as Chief Executive
Officer on 17 October 2022 but continued to be
the Chairman)

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. XU Zhi (resigned on 17 October 2022 but continued
to be the Chief Technology Officer)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
° Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

e Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
59 to 61 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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TEERBSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, the annual
general meeting ("AGM") held during the financial year ended
31 December 2022 are summarised as follows:

BEEE (&)
REBE-_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFHK
FEMBTESESH RERAFRE (K
HBEFRg | )OEFELssFEanT:

Number of
board Number of
meetings AGM

attended/ attended/
held in 2022 held in 2022
—E-—CF —EC-_F
HE BT HE BT
NESE HRREF

2ENE RERH

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung RFHESE

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE

Dr. XU Zhi (resigned on HEET (R2ZTE——
17 October 2022) +A++H8ET)

Non-Executive Director EHITES

Ms. LIN Weihuan MEE L

Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTEE

Ms. AN Na it

Professor ZHAO Jinbao e R

Mr. CHEN Shaohua PR A 2E S A

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING OF THE COMPANY
SECRETARY

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary of the Company must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. The
company secretary, Mr. Ip Pui Sum, provided his training
records to the Company, indicating that he has taken no less
than 35 hours of relevant professional training by means of
attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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11/12 1Al
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14/14 171
11/14 I7Al
14/14 I7Al
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in A.2 in the CG Code which include the
development and reviewing of policies and practices on
corporate governance and compliance with all legal and
regulatory requirements, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, development, reviewing and monitoring of the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is summarised below:
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Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties
LEERERD
ESRENEYE/
8/ EEEE
ERNER
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung REREE v
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE v
Dr. XU Zhi (resigned on 17 October 2022) SEBEL (R F+ATLART) v
Ms. LIN Weihuan MEBL T v
Ms. AN Na Tiat v/
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao BERUR v/
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROZEL A v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviated from this provision because Mr. Leung Tsz Chung
had been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer from 26 February 2021 to 16 October
2022. The Directors considered that vesting two roles in the
same person provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of the Group’s
business strategies and was beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities was ensured by the
operation of the senior management and the Board, which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. Since 17
October 2022, Mr. He Shuangquan has been appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group while Mr. Leung
Tsz Chung has remained as the Chairman of the Board. The
Company has recomplied with Code Provision C.2.1 after
such appointment. The Board currently comprises 2 executive
Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent non-
executive Directors and therefore has a strong independence
element in its composition.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group's performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board'’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group's strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na. Among them, Mr. Chen Shaohua
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and financial management expertise in compliance with the
requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules.
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The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles provide that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with the
Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange website
and the Company’s website at www.goldensolargroup.com.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2022. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 3 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:
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Members BB Attendance of Meeting
SRLERR

Mr. CHEN Shaohua PRAESE (BREESER)
(Chairperson of audit committee) 3/3
Professor ZHAO Jinbao IR 3/3
Ms. AN Na ZHP 2+ 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2022. The remuneration
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended 31
December 2022 to assess the performance of the executive
Directors, review and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
HEE (ARY)

RIETEIEXEENSE HEZ
+ A=+ HLEFEARTSREERA
BMEHFZEHRMOT

= — —

Number of individuals

AR

6,000,000 - 6,500,000
6,500,000 - 7,000,000
14,500,000 - 15,000,000
15,500,000 - 16,000,000
46,500,000 - 47,000,000

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

to develop, review and disclose the policy for nomination
of directors, as appropriate, in the Company’s corporate
governance report annually; and

to implement and review the board diversity policy
("Board Diversity Policy”).
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The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2022. The nomination
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2022 to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the AGM.

The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:
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Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Chairperson of HERYX (REBELESERE)
nomination committee) 11
Mr. CHEN Shaohua PR A 7
Ms. AN Na A+ 11

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Group considered
the diversity of the Board members can be achieved through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates of the Board members will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.
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The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director, and three independent
non-executive Directors, of which 66.7% are male and 33.3%
are female. The Board targets to maintain at least the current
level of female representation and to increase the proportion
of female Directors as and when suitable candidates are
identified. The members of the Board have extensive business,
engineering and professional backgrounds, and have a diverse
range of business, accounting and engineering experience.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of female to male in
the workforce (excluding Directors) was 43.5:56.5, which
demonstrated a well gender balance in our workforce. The
Group expects to maintain a balanced gender ratio of male
and female in the workforce in the coming year. Gender
is neutral in our recruitment consideration as no position
of any kind in our Group requires any capability or skill
that is regarded as performed better by one gender than
another. For details of gender distribution, please refer to our
Environmental, Social and Governance Report contained in this
annual report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination committee shall consider certain factors,
which are not exhaustive and the Board has discretion if
it considers appropriate, in assessing the suitability of the
proposed candidate regarding the appointment of directors or
re-appointment of any existing Board member(s).

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
nomination committee shall make reference to certain criteria
including reputation for integrity; accomplishment, experience
and reputation in the business and industry; commitment
in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
businesses of the Group; diversity policy of the Company; in
case of independent non-executive director, the independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and any
other relevant factors as may be determined by the nomination
committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.
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Nomination procedures
Appointment of new director

a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The nomination committee may select candidates
for directorship from various channels, including but
not limited to internal promotion, re-designation,
referral by other member of the management
and external recruitment agents, and should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If an independent non-executive
director is to be appointed, the nomination
committee will also assess and consider whether
the candidate can satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the nomination committee should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The nomination committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable. Where the Board
proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

e the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive
director will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and
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o how the individual contributes to diversity of
the Board.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the nomination committee should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.
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b)  Re-election of director at general meeting by RBERERAGLEERES

()  The nomination committee should review the () RAZECERNERAESHAR
overall contribution and service to the Company of NAINEBBER LR - A RE
the retiring director and his/her level of participation EEgN2HEEERRR-
and performance on the Board.

(i) The nomination committee should also review (i) IRBZELINER RETRE
and determine whether the retiring director ESZRGMATE L ER-H
continues to meet the criteria as set out above. If B EHITESRBRET 1R
an independent non-executive director is subject BEEBGNMETZREEBZE L
to the re-election, the nomination committee will EHITESEARATE TR
also assess and consider whether the independent BIFFE MBI B ko
non-executive director will continue to satisfy the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules.

(i) The nomination committee should then make (i) REZESEFIRRRERE L&
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the EEENREARRRLEZ -
proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re- EEEoBMRERDS FIRERER

elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the BRSFEFEBREALBES BHAE

relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in PR R e BEMBIR B E, 5

the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement SHBA K e FmR AR5

accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting EEE R EE LA EREHRE A

in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable HWEBEFR -

laws and regulations.

The nomination committee will review the nomination policy, RELESE (NEA) WTIRE R IAE
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the nomination REBHM -RBLZESHTRIBRBR

policy. The nomination committee will discuss any revisions to  {F{a Al e E EEHMEE] W MES
the nomination policy that may be required, and recommend BT AEBBIIAHEREZ LI E-
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors' Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with updates
from time to time on the Company's performance, positions
and prospects.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of
activities, responsibility and authority for each department
and its management staff within the Group. The Group has
a defined goal for each department to accomplish. These
goals were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to
the management through the executive Directors, and will
be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and take any necessary actions for the
improvement of business activities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor, Confucius International
CPA Limited was RMB1,591,000 and Confucius International
CPA Limited did not provide non-audit services to the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy on 20 February 2019. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. Any declaration of final
dividends for the year will be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders. In proposing any dividend pay-out,
the Board shall take into account the following factors:

—  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
—  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,

capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

REBEEZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFTHK
FE EEghERZEEREALRAT
ERENIINDZEMN N mAINGHNE
B R AR R R F A
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B ARRREE - NIRRT R B RER
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@ o

EESUAKREASHIIREEEAERR
BEWmeAEN S BENEBEHE- K
SHEFAENERTRAMARTR F
HEFROEESFERRTImE AT
EERREEBHIT HITESETHIEE
BeERPBEE YRBEMLETH
REXGRY HULBERETEZERR
BfR-

A E

FR - RAR LA RERE SRS
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1,591,0007C B X2 R 2t =5 A IR
NELR A R EBIREIEE RS -

R B BE

EFEeRN T -NF_AZT+HEMRE
BR - EZEANBEAEAARARRE
& R B RS, BRI FE RS T
RAE AR R R IR R A - IR R AT A AR R
N EF@REEN AR

- AREZERNMEHRMBRR:

- AKEZEHLEEESTHR BAH
X ERMARRERE

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022



- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

— general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.goldensolargroup.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholder communication policy of the Group and after
taking into account the aforementioned communication
channels of investors and the measures taken and the events
held by the Company, the Company is of the view that
the shareholder communication policy has been effectively
implemented during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, there is no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHT

Convening an EGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Group arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the “Report”) covers information on the Group’s principal
activities in the manufacture and sale of slippers, sandals,
casual footwear, Graphene-based EVA Foam Material and
Graphene-based Slippers, Sterilizing Chips and graphene air
sterilizers, and Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono HJT solar
cells and modules in the PRC. This Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. This Report
mainly summarises the environment and social performance
of the Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022. The scope of the information disclosed in
this Report and the statistical methods are consistent with the
previous year.

The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle of
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the ESG risks of the
Group, formulating ESG strategies, ensuring the establishment
and maintenance of an effective internal control system
on ESG and conducting regular analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
aforementioned system through internal audit functions.
The Board have identified the material ESG issues from the
annual materiality assessment exercise that involved both
the key employees and external stakeholders. The Group's
environmental and social related impacts and the target
to reduce the negative impacts of material ESG issues are
reported in quantitative numbers that are specific and
measurable.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Report are the information and data of the Group that
originates in the PRC.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group continues to establish diversified communication
channels with its stakeholders to proactively understand their
expectations and concerns regarding the social responsibility
of the Group. We have paid great attention to the valuable
opinions of stakeholders. The Group believes that through
understanding their opinions would assist us to analyze,
identify and revise the aspects of corporate social responsibility
in order to continuously improve and raise our comprehensive
corporate management ability and standard. The table
below sets forth the expectations and concerns which major
stakeholders are more concerned with and the relevant

engagement methods:

Expectation and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRSE

FHENS SR
AEBERBESNERLZ TILERR
B R TRAHASELEEENEN
AR BASEERHHEEENER A
SEHREEBTHEENENEREBEA
I BEEREREEEEEE2RE 7
BNENMETTEEGREER D MAKE-
TRIBAEE T ERNERRBATINY
LHFRKLARENSET N

Means of Communication and

Stakeholders Concern issues Response

FHE HERBTIEE BERERODE
Investors — Return on investment — General meetings
REE - REMO®R - BRER®

Government or
regulatory authorities

B o B

Employees

(=]

— Sustainable business growth

- ARBEERMEBER

— Compliance to listing requirements
- MAELWHRE

— Timely and transparent reporting
- REFERAHRE

— Compliance with law and
regulations

- BERRMER

— Fulfilment of tax obligations

- BIIWMER

— Promoting regional economic
development and employment

- HEESREEERLAERS

— Remuneration and welfares

- FEEEA

— Working environment and
occupational safety

- IERERBELZSE

— Career development opportunities

- BETEME

— Financial results announcements and
annual report

- UBEELERFERS

— Published announcements

- BEHERAE

— Websites of the Company/the Stock
Exchange

- NAEEER P A8

— Response to queries or investigation

- HEEHNmE

— Participation in government meetings or
seminars

- Z2HEBFEHRIMSE

— Regular declaration

- EHIRHR

— Performance evaluation and training
sessions

- REREHE RIEIIERE

— Employee performance assessment

- BIBEMERZ

— Internal meetings and announcements

- NBEELBE
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Means of Communication and

Stakeholders Concern issues Response
B0E HERBTIEE BEREREDE
Customers — Safe and high quality products and - Regular communication via email and
®P services conference calls

- RERREEEMRRE - BRSBREFESZNTHER

— Stable and long—term business Contracts

relationship - &R

- BELAREIMNEBBER — Business visit

— Reasonable price - BMEFED

- AEER

— Corporate reputation

- EEE
Suppliers — Stable and long-term business — Business meetings and conference calls
HpER relationship - ¥BeahEETE

Community and general
public
HEgRR

- REARBONEBHER
— Corporate reputation
- EEE

— Prompt payment cycles
- RE®RFER

— Community involvement

- HR2H

— Economic development

- KRBER

— Understand our environmental and
social impact to the society

- THRAEMEHLEEENRERMS

By 488
wE

— Business visit

- BAXRFED

— Charity activities and social investment
- BRERPRUERE
— Participate in community employment

- ZEMERE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMTMHG

Through communications with respective stakeholders, the ANEEFEHEKZIFMHENER  THRIEEMD
Group understands stakeholders’ expectations and concerns EHEHEF K Wit H O EN R E LE
and responds to the feedback of stakeholders in a timely  fHEIfE  HBERNFERFZEEEL, - FEHEME
manner, determines the disclosure highlights of this Report KREMEOBIEETF K M AE B MEH
and proactively responds to the expectations and concerns of  EFFEOHNEEH RN UATHEEMHIE
respective stakeholders. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters FE A -

of concern are presented in the following materiality matrix:

Materiality Matrix & 2 14 45 &

@® Development and training @® Supply chain management
B B HiEsEER

g ® Employee benefits @® Quality management

< R R E HEEE

T @® Occupational Health and safety

BEMRETS

4
i
L] @® Community investment @® Use of resources @ Data privacy and intellectual
?%!I HERE ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ . property protection
& # ® Anti-corruption BERTLE R A ERRE
e £ RES
EE % @® Noise control
. s REE
% @® Waste water discharge
g BOKHER
2 @® Greenhouse gas emission
2 BEREER
é Prevention of child and forced @ Diversity and equal
§ = labour opportunities
£ 3 BLEET R0 SR P SHE

- @® Solid waste generation

ELERREY
Low 1K Medium High =
Importance to the Group ¥ RSB/ E B
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management, the
ISO14001 environmental management system has been
established and implemented since 2006, with annual
review supervised by third-party certification institutions
and regulatory authorities. The Group formulates
appropriate environmental management operation control
procedures, commits to environmental protection through
continuous enhancement on production technology
and product quality, introduction and promotion of
energy conservation, waste reduction, clean production,
improvement on pollution prevention and control
technology, and material recycling and reuse. In 2022, the
Group invested a total of approximately RMB923,000 for
energy saving, environmental protection, and emission and
waste reduction. The Group adheres to green and low-
carbon development principle, protects the environment as
its mission, and integrates environmental protection with
enterprise development. The Group strictly follows relevant
national environmental laws and regulations to minimize
the impact of production and operating activities to the
environment to the greatest extent, strives to achieve
resource recycling and non-hazardous objectives during
production and operation process and continues to build
a green and harmonious environment. Climate-change
issues do not have significant impact on the Group’s
business activities.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were no
material non-compliances concerning environmental laws
and regulations during the reporting period.
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A.1

Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws
and regulations, and reduces the environmental
impact of emissions generated from the production
and operation process. The Group ensures that the
emissions generated from production and operation
activities are in compliance with national standards
and the requirements of local environmental
protection authorities of the PRC. In the meantime,
the Group formulates and implements daily
inspection of pollution treatment facilities,
and formulates monthly, quarterly and annual
maintenance plans to ensure emission treatment
facilities are under normal operation, so as to
reduce the impact of emissions on the environment.
The main non-hazardous waste generated during
the production used to be wastewater, most
of which is duly processed by our waste water
treatment process. The Group was not subject to
any penalties or fines as a result of non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations.

As summarised in Table 1 below, the Group’s
emissions during the reporting period included:
greenhouse gas (“GHG") and waste water.
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Table 1: Total emissions of the Group in 2021 and

?

R AEE T —FN_F

2022 T FBYE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—Eg--&E -—T--% CBIZE <—E-—%
Intensity @ Intensity @
(Tonnes/ (Tonnes/
Emissions 23,8 Unit Efr Amount Amount RMB’000) RMB’000)
BEO =)
\ (g, (W
EHE HmE AR®TR) AR®EFT)
GHG BERE
Direct emission k33
(Scope 1) (&iE1)
Company car oil REFEH Tonnes [
consumption (Kt2)
(note 2) 39.85 39.31 0.0001 0.0001
Natural gas ARR Tonnes 1
(note 2) (KraE2) 1,826.24 2,086.33 0.0067 0.0067
Indirect emission BEE37 31
(Scope 2) (#iE2)
Externally- SMEES  Tonnes
purchased (Kfit3)
electricity
(note 3) 29,655.98@ 12,809.84 0.1081@ 0.0409
Wastewater &K Tonnes T8 41,707.00 47,896.00 0.1521 0.1528
Notes: TR
1. The calculation for intensity is the emissions amount 1. RENAE AR ANERRSE

divided by revenue in the Group’s reporting period.

2. The calculation of the GHG is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”
from greenhouse gas protocol.

507 BRI A2 o

REREBHENERNRAERE
BEERN [DERHRRE
] -

The externally-purchased electricity emission factor
refers to the 2019 Emission Factors for Purchased
Electricity in Mainland China as published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the increase
in amount and intensity of indirect GHG emission
of externally-purchased electricity of the Group was
mainly attributable to the business of Photovoltaic
Products and the increase in resource allocation in
related research and development projects.
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GHG Emission

GHG included carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide, which were mainly from externally-purchased
electricity and fuel. The Group is in compliance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”
and other relevant laws and regulations, recycling
certain particles generated during the production
process to minimize exhaust gas emission to the
greatest extent. The Group uses clean natural gas
and has installed exhaust gas treatment equipment
on production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion of
boilers and ensure the emission concentration meets
the standard stipulated in the “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”.

Wastewater Discharge

Wastewater generated from the production process
and daily domestic sewage from employees will
be collected for further processing. No sewage is
untreated or illegally released to external waters.
The related procedures are in compliance with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Solid Wastes Generation

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced by
the Group. To minimize the amount of solid waste
generated during the production process, the
Group strictly abides by the principles of recycling
and reuse, as well as the provisions of the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”. The Group carries out hazard elimination
treatment, classification and recycling on solid
wastes pursuant to the “Solid Waste Management
Operations Guide” of the Group, including (i)
recycling and reuse of grinding powder, scrap; (ii)
selling of cardboard boxes, paper products to other
paper mills for recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified
recycling of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.
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Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with the
relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.
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Use of Resources A2. ERFEA
Summarised in Table 2 below, the resources used by REEBRREHRNMERNE
the Group during the reporting period were energy, TRBBEIR KR A R BN
water, paper and packaging materials. B gmn TR
Table 2: Total resources consumption of the Group X AEF-_TE-_—FE-F
in 2021 and 2022 __FRERERE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F —E-C-F —E-_—F
Resources &R Unit Efr Amount Amount  Intensity Intensity
(Unit/ (Unit/
RMB’000) RMB'000)
itk g BEO HEY
(Bfu/AR% (Ei/ARE
T T
Energy B
Direct consumption B H
Petrol b Litres At 17,543.25 17,305.54 0.0640 0.0552
Natural gas KAS M FK 83540500  954,334.00 3.0458 3.0441
Indirect consumption &% & %%

Electricity W) Kwh FEE 37,439,686.352 16,171,993.89 136.5032@ 51.5843
Water 7K Tonnes T 333,532.54 178,395.10 1.2160 0.5690
Paper R Tonnes  H% 2.90 383 0.0000 0.0000
Packaging BEME

By plastic BB Tonnes 1 5.81 13.24 0.0000 0.0000
By paper BEE Tonnes 1 584.04 1,071.60 0.0021 0.0034

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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Notes:

1. The calculation for intensity is the resources
consumption amount divided by revenue in the
Group's reporting period.

2. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the increase
in amount and intensity of indirect consumption
of electricity of the Group was mainly attributable
to the business of Photovoltaic Products and the
increase in resource allocation in related research
and development projects.

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as
much as possible during product development and
production process, constantly pursuing energy
conservation and emission reduction.

The Group has implemented “Green Procurement”
policy to actively encourage suppliers to establish
production management system with environmental
protection and energy saving, purchase
environmentally friendly raw materials in higher
priority through procurement mechanism and supply
chain management, so as to facilitate suppliers to
reduce waste of resources and pollution.

The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies and
advanced technologies to prevent wastage so as to
conserve energy and resources. Specific measures
include: (i) reduction of natural gas consumption
through the installation of boiler thermal oil
recycling pipeline for heat recycling and reuse; (ii)
reduction of hydraulic oil consumption by the use
of hydraulic oil precipitation; and (iii) reduction of
raw material input by recycling the grinding powder
of grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated routine
resource conservation measures include: (i) replacing
high energy-consumption equipment with the more
energy-saving one; (ii) turning off unnecessary
equipment, lighting and air conditioning not in use;
(iii) strengthening inspection and maintenance of
faucets, water pipes and water storage facilities and
other water supply systems to avoid any leakage;
and (iv) announcing company information in
electronic form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin)
if possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.
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A3.

To meet the energy-saving and emission reduction
targets of the government, the Group reports
and evaluates energy-saving new technologies
and emission reduction, and develops energy
performance indicators to strictly control energy
consumption, improve and enhance energy
management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy saving
awareness among employees, so that the resources
can be used more efficiently.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The main environmental impact of the production
business is the use of boiler and electricity in its
manufacturing process. The operation of the boiler
and the use of electricity generate both direct and
indirect GHG emissions. To minimise the impact, the
production and operation sites of the Group have
been evaluated during the initial planning period in
respect of the relevant industrial land environment
and related regulations and the selected production
sites are located in the areas permitted by the local
government. During the production and operation
process, collection and treatment facilities are
installed for proper treatment of pollutants and
emissions in order to ensure meeting the standard
required by local regulations before discharge. The
Group also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures and
programs, including the prevention and control of
pollution and exhaust gas emission, sustainable
use of resources and ecological and environmental
protection, more active support and promotion of
social and environmental sustainable development.
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A4. Climate change

Global climate change has resulted in some extreme
weather and climate events that are more intense,
more frequent, and longer in duration. Heavy rain,
frost, sandstorm, extreme low and high temperature
weather all have a certain degree of impact on site
selection of new factory, stable production and safe
operations.

Prior to the selection of production site, the Group
actively researched and analyzed the possibility
of various future climate changes in the selected
venues and its potential impact on the production
and operation at the site, and gradually deployed
and adopted countermeasures and solutions.
Besides, the Group continuously enhanced the
adaptability of solar panels and modules under
different extreme climatic conditions through the
design optimization, so that our products can adapt
to the severe weather.

In 2022, the Group has not encountered climate
change and related matters that have a material
adverse impact on operations.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully
in compliance with the relevant national laws
and regulations in respect of remuneration,
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversification, anti-discrimination
and other employee benefits and welfare. The
Group also regards employees as its most valuable
asset and strives to provide the competitive salaries,
welfare and working environment for them.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were
no material non-compliances with relevant laws
and regulations regarding employment, employee’s
health and safety, labour standards, product and
service responsibility or corruption during the
reporting period.
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B1.

Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “The Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No arbitrary dismissal of an
employee is allowed; the rights and obligations
of both parties to the employment contract are
clearly stated, the legitimate rights of employees are
protected, in order to establish a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.

Employee Benefits

The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment, network
recruitment in a fair and impartial way. The
Group provides employees with comprehensive
social security benefits, including basic salary,
pensions, incentive bonuses, medical insurance,
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund. The Group will also provide other
employee benefits depending on job nature,
including meals, uniforms and fully equipped
accommodation. The human resources department
of the Group conducts regular reviews and updates
on the relevant company policies from time to
time pursuant to the latest laws and regulations.
Employee performance appraisal, management
position promotion, and other company policies are
implemented to provide career development path
to employees like internal promotions, on the job
training. To attract high-quality talents and retain
outstanding employees, the Group launches 2021
Share Option Scheme and timely conducts reviews
on salary with reference to market standards,
formulates competitive salary and bonus system,
and provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.
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Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in
which all can thrive.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the grounds
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, family
status, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, ethnic background or any other non-
working related factors. Each newly-recruited
employee is required to sign a labour contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations of both the employee and the
employer, and all employees are entitled to
terminate the employment relationship with the
related employment company of the Group. The
entering, amendment, cancellation and termination
of the relevant employment contract are strictly in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Total Employees and Turnover

The Group had a total number of 934 employees
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 782). Below is a
detailed breakdown of our employees by gender,
age group, employment type and geographical
region as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
T HERERHRS

ZTIERFEHE
AEEBOREE R GE—EE
DM ERN TS XL S
BEITHAEAKR-

AEEHEI-RRAC A
BETTER/MERN Bk =R
o Filk BRI RKEAR - £
B BORRE REKE =
SERMEMIETERBREEM
BERXREEAR - B ABET
FERELYPAR PRTEE
TREZETHEN  BETEE
% G B THB RN EEAR
SEEBERIFNERER-
MHEREE RIS EF @
R 1B BRI ST R AR K
RME

EEHERTAE
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—8"
RNEFEHKEBBILEE (=
T —F:782) AT
—E-—F+-A=+—Hk&
MR Fhe R - EIEER K
REDHEBFMESTIWNT :

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics BEG ETAH BAl BETAH BAlt
By gender BRI
Male E 528 56.5% 454 58.1%
Female g3 406 43.5% 328 41.9%
By employment type RERER
Full-time T 905 96.9% 740 94.6%
Part-time *B 29 3.1% 42 5.4%
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2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics REsE BETAH BO BTAZ BAL
By age group BERAR
Below 30 305 A T 107 11.5% 70 8.9%
30-50 30-507%, 601 64.3% 530 67.8%
Above 50 507 £ 226 24.2% 182 23.3%
By geographical region RE
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ HE (BB ) 929 99.5% 778 99.5%
Hong Kong B 5 0.5% 4 0.5%

During the reporting period, our employee turnover
headcount was 274 (2021: 184). Below is a detailed
breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during
the year and the corresponding period in 2021:

RBEHARN HMAME THER

ANEE274% (ZF

——%:184

) RERER_T_—FRAH
RIER - FEAR MRS D1
BERARFHMA@IEINNAT

2022 2021
Turnover Statistics BEB AT AT —2=-= —ET_—
Turnover rate by gender BRI 2 R KR
Male B4 30.9% 24.4%
Female peg 27.3% 22.3%
Turnover rate by age group REWRA R 82 HR KR
Below 30 30BR A T 67.3% 77.1%
30-50 30-50%% 27.6% 21.9%
Above 50 5078 A 15.9% 7.7%
Turnover rate by R BEDHREAE
geographical region

PRC (excluding Hong Kong) hE (BRI 29.3% 23.7%
Hong Kong B 40.0% -
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Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the health
and safety of employees and has obtained OHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System certification, Work Safety
Standardisation certification. The Group has set up
an occupational health and safety management
organisation and a safety production committee
and strictly abides by the relevant standards of
“Occupation Health and Safety Management
System” and “Basic Standard for Work Safety
Standardisation”. The Group also adheres to
the principles of safety production management
and formulates the regulatory system of safety
production management and operation rules for
all positions. The safety and health of employees
are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.

Occupational Health and Safety

To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment at all times, the Group regularly
provides various kinds of work protective gears to
employees in accordance with working requirements
of each position and supervises and educates them
to wear and utilise correctly; appoints responsible
staff for the safe production of each department
and implements various safety education; installs
dust removal and waste discharging devices on
facilities generating dust and exhaust gas; controls
noise transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees. Fire
safety inspection, training, and drills are regularly
organized to improve safety awareness and self-
protection of employees.

B2.
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The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, to
build a safe working environment.
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Occupational health and safety data 2022 2021 2020
BEREHEZ2HE —B-Zf —T-—F —E-FTF
Work related fatality cases

B ITERE ML T @R - - -
Work injury cases

THEz 12 10 3
Lost days due to work injury

AIGHERTIERR 166 224 109
Other Health and Safety Measures HEtRERZEERE

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in
early 2020, the Group is highly conscious of the
potential health and safety impacts that it may
bring to its employees and customers. During
the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group have
established an Epidemic Prevention Working Group
and formulated various safe management measures
against COVID-19 epidemic, displayed notices in
workplace area, provided employees with sufficient
epidemic prevention supplies, and taught employees
the correct personal protection means, so as to
prevent the virus from spreading in the workplace.
Also, regular disinfection was carried out to provide
a virus free working environment to safeguard
employee’s health.
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B3.

Development and Training

In respect of human resources training, the
Group provides employees with induction and
continuous training to promote their career
development. For newly-recruited employees,
the Group provides comprehensive orientation
training of corporate culture, operation processes,
work health and safety, management policies and
business development. The Group also encourages
employees to participate in on the job training and
provides appropriate subsidies to eligible employees.
Based on job nature, the Group offers trainings
of different types and levels to newly recruited
employees, junior supervisors, senior supervisors
and key personnel, like management and
production project training, aiming at constantly
improving the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.

For the reporting period, a total of 468 (2021: 369)
of our employees received trainings with an average
of 9.99 (2021: 3.05) training hours. Our training
statistics of employees are as follows:

B3.
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2022 2021
—EB-CE “E-—F

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Employee received training ¥ &I BIAE Bl BIAH BOl
By gender BRI
Male B 313 66.9% 256 69.4%
Female pegid 155 33.1% 113 30.6%
By employment category R {EEERI
Senior management SREER 21 4.5% 6 1.6%
Middle management hREERE 94 20.1% 85 23.0%
Staff ET 353 75.4% 278 75.4%
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Average training hours 2022 2021
per employee BURERETFHZIRH —E=-= T —F
By gender BB

Male B4 11.7 3.3
Female pegli 6.5 2.8
By employment category RERER

Senior management SRERE 8.4 2.0
Middle management RREIRE 4.1 2.7
Staff 8T 11.6 3.2
Labour Standards B4. % T %8|

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Byl B T RiEELEE

Labour

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism. The
employee manual stipulates that selected candidates
must meet the legal age. Before confirming the
employment, the human resources department of
the Group will require applicants to provide valid
identity documents to ensure that they are legally
employed and fully in compliance with the latest
relevant laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour. The Group also conducts
regular inspection and review of the implementation
of human resources policies to eliminate child
labour and forced labour.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and set reasonable
working hours and leaves for employees pursuant
to local employment ordinances and employment
contracts with employees. The Group has installed a
human resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working hours
and vacation dates. If overtime work is required,
employees may obtain appropriate overtime
payment or compensatory leave under the relevant
employment contract or labour legislation. To
prevent forced overtime work, overtime must be
agreed by employees voluntarily. During office
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within
the factory or office area (except prohibited special
areas), and it is not mandatory for employees to live
in the factory quarters.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to sustainable
and reliable supply chain to ensure sustainable
enterprise development. The Group has formulated
and implemented supplier management system.
Regarding supplier selection, the Group conducts
qualification inspection, factory visit and other
assessment processes on potential suppliers with
the principles of fairness, impartiality, openness
and honesty. Inspection areas include the
production capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety of the supplier.

In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and product
quality.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of
993 suppliers (2021: 433 suppliers). Among them,
979 suppliers (2021: 425 suppliers) are from the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan),
and the remaining 14 suppliers (2021: 8 suppliers)
are from overseas.

The Group does not include environmental and
social factors as assessment criteria of our suppliers.
Nevertheless, we will review and terminate the
business relationship with the suppliers should
there be press and media coverage on the negative
environmental and social impacts caused by them,
such as excessive pollutions and discharges to the
environment, unfair treatment, exploitation of
workers and product safety incidents.

B5.
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B6. Product Responsibility

Quality Management

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People's Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product safety
and did not recover any products due to product
safety and health reasons. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters related to products
sold during the year.

Data Privacy and Intellectual Property
Protection

The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response to
the feedback of customers and instant response to
product inquiries. Unless prior approval is obtained,
employees shall not disclose any price-sensitive
information relating to the customers, product
distributors, intangible assets, business secrets of
the Group which may come to their knowledge
during their employment or after termination of
their employment.
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The promotion activities of the Group’s products are
carried out by advertising agencies in accordance
with the Group’s policy of privacy, its business
strategy, and the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

The Group strictly abides by the “Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other relevant
laws and regulations relating to intellectual property
protection. Apart from manufacturing customers’
products, the Group has also established its own
brands. The Group has implemented internal
policies to eliminate the risk of infringing customers’
and third parties’ intellectual property in its design,
research, development and manufacturing processes
as well as protecting its own rights. The Group's
design and development team shall ensure their
designs are not identical and do not bear a close
resemblance to the products of any other customers
or those in the public market. In addition, measures
have been adopted to facilitate the management
and protection of intellectual property, for example,
using password-protected computers to store
products’ information, encrypting files in the
transmission process and prohibiting employees
from taking out product prototypes and samples
without permission.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of integrity and
strictly abides by the provisions of the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the “Interim Provisions on Banning
of Commercial Bribery” and other relevant laws
and regulations. The Group has formulated
“Personnel Management Regulations” and other
related systems to standardise various business
activities. An internal monitoring system is set up
for strengthening anti-fraud, anti-extortion, anti-
corruption, anti-money laundering and bribery
supervision, while a whistle-blowing mechanism
and a reward and punishment committee are also
set up to strengthen management and promote
compliance, so as to prevent and eliminate fraud,
extortion, bribery and corruptions on various
aspects of operation and management. The
Group prohibits any acts of fraud, extortion,
corruption and bribery, prohibits employees from
taking advantages of their powers and duties
for corruption, embezzlement, encroachment
of corporate property, acceptance of bribes and
kickbacks, etc. Through various measures like
training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics and
conduct is formulated for the communication with
business partners, suppliers, customers, etc. and
employees are required to follow strictly.

When there is any alleged case in violation of laws,
regulations or Group’'s policies, the Group will
investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon
offenders after verification.

During the year, the Group did not notice any non-
compliance of the applicable laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and did not face any
disciplinary action with respect to corruption issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RBR HERERBKSE

3. Community 3.
B8. Community Investment B8.

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public
welfare activities. No formal policy on community
investment has been established. Nevertheless, the
Group contributed to the charity and public welfare
undertakings through organising blood donation,
and continuously encourages its employees to
participate in charitable events during the year.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 53, has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group since 26 February 2021. Mr. Leung resigned
as Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 17 October
2022 but continued to be the Chairman of the Board and
authorised representative under the Listing Rules. Before the
re-designation on 26 February 2021, he had been appointed
as the executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and the
authorised representative under the Listing Rules with effect
from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung holds a degree of bachelor
of arts in Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a degree of master in Business Administration
from the University of New South Wales. He has 30 years of
extensive experience in business administration in domestic
and overseas markets. Mr. Leung joined 2D Material
Technology Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the chief executive officer in November 2014.

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 57, is an executive Director of the
Company and the authorised representative under the Listing
Rules. Before the re-designation on 26 February 2021, Mr.
Zheng had been appointed as a Director since 21 July 2008,
and had been appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an executive Director and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules since 10
May 2013. Mr. Zheng has more than 20 years of experience
in the slipper business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a
director of Quanzhou Baofeng since 28 March 2007 and as a
director of BAOF International Limited since 21 July 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 41, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over ten years of experience in accounting.
She is now the sole director and sole shareholder of Total
Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”) which is principally
engaged in investment business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of A E# T # 1 kx4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982. She has also been a vice president of 1t& (imEE)
F754E (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In August 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from E#EEEE EEEE
& 8@ (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2002. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from PEILE T
¥ BT (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
BR7E Rl K2 (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (B1%
FFK E2) (previously known as China Central Radio and TV
University (R EEE R KE)), and obtained a bachelor's
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (3t 5 T A£) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit and
tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the executive director and
legal representative of auditing firm, tax company, asset and
property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 59, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 3 February
2015. Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology (% 8378 T ¥ KX 2) of the PRC and obtained a
bachelor of engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984
and a master’s degree in High Polymer Materials Engineering
in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained a doctor’s degree
in Engineering from Kyoto University in Japan in 1996. He
has been a distinguished professor of Physical Chemistry in
the Xiamen University (JEF9K2%) of the PRC since 2011. He
has over 30 years of extensive experience in research and
development in the field of engineering and chemistry and was
recruited as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program of
Global Experts (85N& B IR A A S #EEHE)).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group always pays attention to environmental protection.
Details of the environmental policies and performance of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. During the year under review, the
Group considered the relationship with employees was good
and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of
raw materials and aiming at delivering products with high
quality to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have
a close and long term relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 89 to 212.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 72.42% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 30.46%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 51.2% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
15.1% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

e  Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (resigned as
Chief Executive Officer on 17 October 2022
but continued to be the Chairman)
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong
Dr. XU Zhi (resigned on 17 October 2022
but continued to be the Chief Technology Officer)

e Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

e Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2),
Professor Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na shall retire from office by
rotation at the AGM. Being eligible, Professor Zhao Jinbao and
Ms. An Na will offer themselves for re-election as independent
non-executive Directors at the AGM. Ms. An Na was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2010
and has served for more than nine years.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent. The Board is of the view that
Ms. An Na meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and maintains her independence in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines despite that she
has served the Board for more than nine years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
59 to 61 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three-month notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested, directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, contract or arrangement during
the year which is significant in relation to the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
had any material interest in business which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares:

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest

I’“zy

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
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RoEREEREPNERKKXR

R-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H EFFNK
RAEEZTHAEBRARR R EREEE
(EERBHEBEGD ([FHRKPEK
B 1) EBXVER) B R% 17« #8 BE A% 10 K (& 4 7F
PR )VREESRHAEEAEXVIET R
F8DEAME AR F) MR P A RE 5 Mok
B (BREREFESRBEROEBIEXHE
EESRBHEENEZLAR)  (NVBRIEFE
N B E GBI FE35216 A58 A% G Pl i
ARARFEMELMOERS AR i)
RiE E R B SR 10FT S A IZE ST B A48
TFEEMEARNR KRBT ER AR I
T

RERG REERDPARES:

Number of Percentage of
Shares/underlying  the Company’s
Shares (other than issued share
share options) held capital®
FERGHER

7 (BREUN) (EXDAESHT

EEnA SO RERME £ §E] BAEFD O
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Beneficial owner 6,000,000(L) 0.35%
(resigned as Chief Executive Ezi#EAE A
Officer on 17 October 2022
but continued to be the
Chairman)
RFHREE(RZFT=_Z
+ A+t HEHEITERBEED
BERERE)
Ms. LIN Weihuan (“Ms. Lin”) @ Interest in controlled corporation 233,155,792(L) 13.62%
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

REATBREFHNTR:
Percentage of
the Company'’s

Number of share issued share

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest options held® capital®
EARDAFEBITR

EEnA S RERME FriFEREHBE® b=l A

Ms. Lin Beneficial owner 1,000,000(L) 0.06%

N EnlEa A

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Beneficial owner 3,000,000(L) 0.18%

RF A EmlEa A

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong Beneficial owner 8,500,000(L) 0.50%

SRR AE EnlEaA

Notes: Fifat

(1) The percentage has been calculated based on the total number (1) FHBDLEIRER T -_—_F+=
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 1,711,959,608 A=+—HB®BE 81Tk {HEE (A
shares). 1,711,959,6080% ) 5t & -

(2) Ms. Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total (2) M 3R AR Total ShinePT# A% 7 &

Shine is interested.

(3) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each of them under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 January 2011
("2011 Share Option Scheme”) and 2021 Share Option
Scheme respectively. Accordingly, each of them was regarded
as interested in the underlying Shares.

(4) The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of share options of the Company are included in the
section “Share Option Schemes” below and also shown in
note 32 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
2021 Share Option Scheme on 8 January 2011 and 2 July
2021 respectively. Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and 2021 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 214,700,000
and 53,000,000 accumulated total outstanding share options
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and 2021 Share Option
Scheme respectively. Save for the aforementioned share
options, the Company does not have any other outstanding
share options.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2022:

I’“zy
\

Report of the Directors
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fEIR RS E LR
ARREREZFHBENT X [BRE
&) —& ARER M ERRMFE32

Bt a
AATRPN-T——&F—ANBR-ZF
——FEAZBRM-T——FHRES
BR -2 -GBS R-—T——%F
PR B R =T = — AR B
BB AR A B B BRI 32 -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=t+—HB XRARV
TR FBRETEIAR T —FBRK
AT BIR RERTTRE 2 BREEE S FIR
214,700,00017 53,000,0005 © Bk - it i
PR AE SN - 7R A ) A A AE AT H At i) SR AT (R B9
AR HE -

TREERA-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H8%
TR —FREREZETHOMRITER
& HE -

Nurber of share options
BRERA
Qutstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat 31 Exercise price
Date of asat! duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise pershare
grant/” January 2022 year year year year 022 period (HKS) ~ Notes
a2 it a2
-f-8 tZAZ1-A SRAEE
Name or Category of participants SEANE 2585 RHAH" WAGE  EARE  EROE  EREE RN WEGE  ENY (Bx) W&
Executive Directors HrEs
ZHENG Jingdong 853 1962018 300,000 - - - - 300,000 A 054
19/612018 200,000 - - - - 200,000 B 0.54
Sub-total It 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Employees s
19/6/2018 43,920,000 - - - - 43920000 A 0.54 3
19/6/2018 29,330,000 - (50,000)® - - 29,280,000 8 0.54 3
211012020 50,400,000 - - - - 50,400,000 ( 055 LS
21012020 33,600,000 - - - - 33,600,000 D 055 3
Sub-total st 157,250,000 - (50,000) - - 157,200,000
EHEFERRNBZEREGRAE B FFERE

%4
¢
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Number of share options
EhesA
Qutstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat 31 Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise pershare
grant”” January 2022 year year year year 022 period? (HKS) ~ Notes
W-§-CE WoEoCE
-f-H tZA=t-H ShARE
Name or Category of participants S & AR 2585 FHAH" HETE  ERRE  EATE  EREE  ERAN HARE AR (Bm) Wi
Consultants ER
19612018 18,000,000 - - - - 18,000,000 A 0.54
19/612018 12,000,000 - - - - 12,000,000 B 0.54
20100020 16,200,000 - - - - 16,200,000 ( 055
20100020 10,800,000 - - - - 10,800,000 D 055
Sub-total it 57,000,000 - - - - 57000000
Total H] 214,750,000 - (50,000 - - 214,700,000
Notes: Bt &t
1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date 1. BHREERHBRA_ZT—NFRA
of grant on 19 June 2018 and 22 October 2020 were HK$0.50 TAEEZZE-_ZF+A=+ZHHH
and HK$0.50 respectively. W8 5 51 40.50% 7T % 0.50/8 7T ©
2. The respective exercise periods of the share options granted 2. It ERESBITEBHRNT :

are as follows:

A: From 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023;

B: From 19 June 2019 to 18 June 2023;

C: From 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025; and

D: From 22 October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

A ZE-NEXRATAHEEZZ
—=FXATNB:

B: ZE-AFRATARBEZ=T
—=FEXRATNE:

C: ZZT-TF+AZ+ZRE=F
“hEHAZ+-R: R

D: ZT=—Ft+tAZ+ZRE=F
—hE+A=Z+—R-

ZEBRENEBMAEREAMER
ETEHFASAL-
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a. 6,480,000 share options were granted to Dr. Xu Zhi
who was an executive Director and resigned on 17
October 2022 but continued to be an employee of the
Group.

6,000,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

b. 4,320,000 share options were granted to Dr. Xu Zhi
who was an executive Director and resigned on 17
October 2022 but continued to be an employee of the
Group.

4,000,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

C. 8,400,000 share options were granted to Dr. Xu Zhi
who was an executive Director and resigned on 17
October 2022 but continued to be an employee of the
Group.

d. 5,600,000 share options were granted to Dr. Xu Zhi
who was an executive Director and resigned on 17
October 2022 but continued to be an employee of the
Group.

Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant
of the Group, at the time of exercise of his or her share
options.

The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

The share price immediately before the date of exercise for
share options exercised on 11 May 2022 was HK$7.15.

I’“zy

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

3. a. 6,480,0007 BEfE#EE B T T &
B g AERTEERE_Z
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REBEZREE

6,000,000 EREEE T — %
wAEREEBRMZ AT RFEHE

b. 4,320,000D FEREE R FIFE
B e AERTEEREZ
——Ft+tA++tHET BNA
REBEZREE

4,000,000 ERRIEE R T — 4
wAEREEBRMZ AT RFEHE

C. 8,400,000 &R #EE B T RF &
B e AERTESEREZ
——FtAt++tHET BNA
REBEZREE

d. 5,600,000 R EEE FHE
B B ARNTEERAE_Z
——F+A++HET - BNA
REBZEE

4. TTEE G« BB B AR A RT3 B R A
BEDARAEENES REHER -

5. BREOEE & RITEERSEMRR
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As at 1 January 2022, the Company had 165,269,560 share
options available for grant under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and as at 31 December 2022, the Company had
111,269,560 share options available for grant under the 2021
Share Option Scheme.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2022:

RIEZ—F—R—RB ARARZT_—
FRERRESTEITE T8 165,269,56017 B8 A% 1
AR R F+=A=+—
B AQRRR-EZ—FHREFTSIET
B111,269,56017 B A & 0] (3% H -

TREER-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—Ax
—E - FHEREAEETHNERRITER
& HE -

Number of share options
EhEHE
Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted ~ Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed a at Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe 31December  Exercse pershare
grant” January 2022 year year year year 022 period ? (HKS)
3t St 3 RZB-ZE
-f-H tZAZ1-H SRARE
Name or Category of participants SEANREEIEN RERE HAE  ERRE fif  EhdE  ERZN HAGE  AEEY (%)
Executive Directors yfrgs
ZHENG Jingdong g2% 2112022 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 A 9.6
211200 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 B 9.6
211200 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 ( 9.6
211022 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 D 962
LEUNG Tz Chung 24 2112022 - 750,000 - - - 750,000 A 9.6
2112022 - 750,000 - - - 750,000 B 9.6
211200 - 750,000 - - - 750,000 ( 9.6
211200 - 750,000 - - - 750,000 D 9.6
Non-Executive Director FaiEs
LIN Weilhuan iER 2112022 - 250,000 - - - 250,000 A 9.6
2112022 - 250,000 - - - 250,000 B 9.6
211200 - 250,000 - - - 250,000 ( 9.6
211200 - 250,000 - - - 250,000 D 9.6
Sub-total Nt - 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
Employees s
2112022 - 14,007,600 - - - 14,007,600 t 9.6
2112022 - 14,001,900 - - (565,000 13436,900 A 9.6
211200 - 4,663,500 - - (55,0000 4098500 B 9.6
211200 - 4,663,500 - - (65,0000 4098500 ( 9.6
211022 - 4,663,500 - - (5650000 4,098,500 D 9.6
Sub-ttal it - 4,000,000 - - (2260000 39740000
Total a3t - 54,000,000 - - (2,260,000) 51,740,000
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Notes:

1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of
grant on 21 January 2022 was HK$9.45.

2. The respective exercise periods of the share options granted
are as follows:

A: From 21 January 2023 to 20 January 2027,

B: From 21 January 2024 to 20 January 2027,

C: From 21 January 2025 to 20 January 2027;

D: From 21 January 2026 to 20 January 2027; and

E: From 21 January 2022 to 20 January 2027,

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

3. Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director or an employee of the
Group, at the time of exercise of his or her share options.

4. The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares:

Capacity and nature of

FERRREMALIREMORMA
BEROPHERRKXR

RZEBE-—F+-_A=+—"H BEEX
AAREBITHRABRA - AT AL R
(BEFERARBEETHABRIN R
NEABERDFPHEEIERAIEEEE
BIEFEFH K BEGRHIEXVEE2 39 58
BEXARARNBEERELRRIEES X
B EKPIE36KAETHEENT LMK A
SITHNERRBIZERRABIAT

REORAEBROFHESZR XA

Percentage of the

Number of Shares/ Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares" share capital®®
Bt HARAT ST
= SORERME HEER A E B [ &=l ALY
Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang (“Mr. Chiu”) @ Interest in controlled 251,256,365 (L) 14.68%
corporation/beneficial
owner
ERETAE SE A4 ([ERSEAEL) O FrizslzEmiED &
A A
Market Dragon Investments Interest in controlled 240,656,365 (L) 14.06%
Limited (“Market Dragon”) @ corporation
Friz sl =B R
Best Mark International Limited Beneficial owner 240,656,365 (L) 14.06%
(“Best Mark”) @ oA A
Ms. Lin @ Interest in controlled 234,155,792 (L) 13.68%
corporation/
beneficial owner
MA@ FrizhlxE iz
EmEE A
Total Shine @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 13.62%

BEmBEAA
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Capacity and nature of
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Percentage of the

Number of Shares/ Company’s issued

As
Y
'4

?

Name interests underlying Shares share capital®®
Bt HARRAT ST
£ SORERME HEERAE B [ &N i A
Bluestone Technologies (Cayman)  Beneficial owner 174,400,000 (L) 10.19%
Limited (“Bluestone”) ©
EORE(FAE)BERAR Enla A
([ER])®
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui ® Interest in controlled 174,400,000 (L) 10.19%
corporation
HEARE SO Friz s =B R
Mr. Wang Xiaoan © Interest in controlled 137,590,000 (L) 8.04%
corporation/
beneficial owner
FELFEAO FriEdl~E DR,
EnEA A
Ms. Zhang Bihong Interest in controlled 110,800,000 (L) 6.47%
("Ms. Zhang”) @ corporation
REBZ L ([REL])? FryE sl A B i
Mr. Lin Chaohui ? Spousal interest/interest in 110,800,000 (L) 6.47%
controlled corporation
MEE S D Bz,
F¥E &% B A i
Venus Capital Fund ©® Beneficial owner 100,800,000 (L) 5.89%
EmEAA
Venus Capital Management Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 5.89%

Company Limited ©

Notes:

corporation

P2 1A B ey 21

) Mr. Chiu directly holds 600,000 Shares and is interested in
10,000,000 Shares by virtue of the share options granted to
him under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and is also deemed
to be interested in the 240,656,365 Shares held by Best Mark.
Best Mark is indirectly wholly owned and controlled by Mr.

Chiu through Market Dragon.

Ff it -

(1 Ef % 4 B % #5 5600,000/% fE 17 A &
ERARBE-_ZT——FERETERT
1% 2 B8 A% AE 210,000, 000% P& 17 & #
BT TR AR Best Markis B 2
240,656,365[% % 17 4 #% A # 2= © Best
Mark F B 7t 4 i #Market Dragonfil#&
2ER RIEH -
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Market Dragon wholly owns Best Mark and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Best Mark is interested.

Best Mark is interested in 240,656,365 Shares.

Total Shine is interested in 233,155,792 Shares. Ms. Lin,
who wholly owns and controls Total Shine, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Total Shine is interested. Ms.
Lin is also interested in 1,000,000 Shares by virtue of the share
options granted to her under the 2021 Share Option Scheme.

Bluestone is interested in 174,400,000 Shares. Mr. Zhuang
Chaohui, who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Bluestone is interested.

137,590,000 Shares were held by Mr. Wang Xiaoan and/or
corporation(s) controlled by him.

Ms. Zhang, who wholly owns and controls Venus Capital
Management Company Limited, is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Venus Capital Management Company
Limited is interested.

Mr. Lin Chaohui, the spouse of Ms. Zhang, is deemed to be
interested in Ms. Zhang's interests in the Company.

Ms. Zhang and Mr. Lin Chaohui also together indirectly holds
Gold Stone (Fujian) Energy Company Limited (“Gold Stone”).
Hwabao Trust Co., Ltd, who acted as the trustee of Gold
Stone holding 10,000,000 Shares through its trust fund named
Hwabao e Overseas Investment Series 2 No. 45-9 QDII Single
Money Trust.

Venus Capital Fund is interested in 100,800,000 Shares.

Venus Capital Management Company Limited wholly owns
Venus Capital Fund and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Venus Capital Fund is interested.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 1,711,959,608
Shares).

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares
or underlying Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
the 2021 Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward its
Directors and eligible participants. Details of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and the 2021 Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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==—————Confucius International CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 89 to 212, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Certified Public Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation and impairment of inventories

We identified the valuation and impairment of inventories as
a key audit matter because the carrying amount of inventories
was significant and the assessment of recoverability of the
carrying amount involved significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty.

At 31 December 2022, inventories of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB179,392,000, which represented
approximately 20% of total assets of the Group. As described
in the accounting policies in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The net realisable value of inventory could be
impacted by changes in economic conditions as well as changes
in customers’ preferences and competitor strategies in responses
to changes in market conditions.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognised the impairment loss on inventories
approximately RMB3,985,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
valuation and impairment of inventories include:

o Understanding the Group’s key controls in relation
to the identification of slow-moving inventories and
measurement of the allowance for inventories;

o Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of
inventories to their net realisable value through a detailed
review of sales subsequent to the year end. When there
are no subsequent sales, assessing and examining the
assumptions and estimates applied by management
in determining the net realisable value of inventories
including discussing with the management for the
assumptions and judgement made in assessing net
realisable values;
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
(continued)

o Observed the physical condition of samples of inventories
during attendance of stock take conducted by
management to identify any slow-moving or damaged
items;

o Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
calculations of the impairment allowance for inventories;
and

o Checked the accuracy of inventory aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow-moving and obsolete inventories on a sample basis.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

We have identified the valuation of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because
applying the Group’s accounting policies in this area involves
a significant degree of judgement by the management in
assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment for
property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting
period which may affect its respective carrying amount.

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB131,639,000. No impairment loss was recognised
for property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Details of the property, plant and equipment is set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

o performing the physical inspection to check whether the
property, plant and equipment are in good conditions.

o evaluating the management’s assessment of the
indicators of impairment and, where such indicators were
identified, assessed the management’s impairment testing
and identify any valuation risk of property, plant and
equipment.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(continued)

o discussing with the management on the key assumptions
used in the management’s assessment of the indicators of
impairment.

o assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted; and

o challenging the data and assumptions, such as cash flow
projections and data used as inputs for the valuation,
which included reference to the market selling price of
comparable assets and other available market information.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

At 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of the Group'’s
trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB95,527,000,
net of allowance for credit losses of approximately RMB147,000,
which was material to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables which are assessed individually with a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings. The assessment of
expected credit losses of trade receivables involved significant
management judgement and estimation including their
assessment of customers’ current financial position and forward-
looking information.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding of the Group's procedures
on setting of credit limits and credit periods given to
customers with the management;

o evaluating the design and implementation of controls
over the accounting process of making allowance for
credit losses and evaluated management’s assumptions
and judgement by comparing to the historical collection
trends;

o checking the accuracy of preparation of the aging
analysis of trade receivables by customers by tracing the
data back to the source documents;

o checking on a sampling basis, the debtors’ historical
payment pattern and the bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the reporting period;

o checking on a sampling basis, the evidence including
correspondence with the debtors for the latest progress
of the outstanding amounts; and

o assessing the expected credit loss provision methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sampling basis and
reviewing the key assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, including both historical and
forward-looking information.

We found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the recoverability of trade
receivables were supportable by credible evidence.
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Valuation of investment properties

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2022, the Group had investment properties
held by a subsidiary of approximately RMB66,251,000 and for
which a gain arising on change in fair value of approximately
RMB135,000 was recognised and presented as “Fair value
gain on investment properties” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The fair
value was determined by management with reference to the
valuations performed by independent professional property
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

The valuation of investment properties was considered as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements involved in determining the inputs
used in the valuation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to the valuations of investment
properties included:

o evaluating the competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity of the Valuers;

o obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared by
the Valuers;

o discussing the valuations with management and the
Valuers and challenging key estimates adopted and
inputs used in the valuations, including those relating
to market selling prices, market rents and capitalisation
rates, by comparing them with historical rates and market
observable data;

o evaluating the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of other property valuations for
similar types of properties; and

o checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used in the valuations on a sample basis.

We found the key assumptions used in management’s
valuation of investment properties were supported by available
evidence.
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Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not included the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control,

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

s ¥

B %A RS

BB B GEMBRRARENE

E(#&)

s HEERARBBELLSHEARNAE
MEE L B - WRIBATERNELR
EOHMEEAGFEEAIES SN
4§ BERENFELERNELEXR
EEMFANBNABNERNTHEE
Mo mEMIRRFEERIEES
A EERBEREPIRFBERE
EBRAMBERRTHOMEMME
BRABRENR BIRMEE HRIFE
REBR - BAINERIENEBER
P EEN SRS B TS ERT R
oA REREFBEKFBRALE

B ESRBETERSERLE

o A EMBHmMERNEEZ®mAA
EBLEAR BREEE ULEEY
BHRRESTERMEBIZIME
8 &

o B ERERERAEXFEINME
BRI R MEE ERRE A
BHEAVHHRERERER -LME
B BEEEFFNIA EERH
T-BPRBABRAEEHEE-

BB (R BE)FTHE &M
RHENERBFBERETER ZFERE
ERPEESBREDEAINABEZNE
1A B R HRPE ©

BATFREEELER  BHEMETE
BREEHERBRER  WRKEFER
AEEAERREFERMBLIENA
BENEMERE  ARBBEH#ER(NE
Fa)e

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS

(S
\W,
'4

?

=

87
~\



o

4

\

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary
Practising Certificate Number: PO1316

Hong Kong
31 March 2023

BB B GREMBRRARENE
E(#&)

feERE EA BRI =R - T IHEEH A
B M BREETEMEZNER K
RETFE - RMESRBEDREPRAZE
T RIPRBIER T AT AR NELF
TR FEBREABRT  HEEBHE
B REFBBEXEREKNNE@MER
BEARME  AIRFIRE T EERSETE
B EIA

XREEEMEKRERA T
BEDFTED

ER

HEEZZHENE  P01316

BB
—T-=F#=fA=+-H

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

- \//

HEREBERHEMEZEKRE X
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Kt aE ARBT T AREFIT
REVENUE Wz 6 274,277 313,506
Cost of sales SHE KA (238,754) (224,989)
GROSS PROFIT EX 35,523 88,517
Other net income and gains HE WA R 5E 6 55,502 32,486
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment  FEUE 5 85 FURE
loss) on trade receivables BaECREER) 1,220 (648)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DHEEX (11,707) (10,559)
General and administrative expenses —MRITH A (240,906) (88,530)
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESH 18 (416) (107)
Finance costs BE KA 7 (4,414) (5,572)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair IR AT (EFFABZRZ
value through profit or loss EREEZANTE
e 141 707
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment REWMEZ A VE
properties Wz, (E518) 16 135 (4,763)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRES AT (B518), FIH 8 (164,922) 11,531
Income tax expense FTSRiM > 11 (2,118) (2,308)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KABHEE AEAE
AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FR(BR) FIER
(EXPENSES)/INCOME FOR THE FARZE (X)) k=
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS e
OF THE COMPANY 12 (167,040) 9,223
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BR(ER) B 14
- Basic (RMB cent) —ER(AREESD) (9.767) 0.579
- Diluted (RMB cent) —HEARED) (9.767) 0.512

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 WR-ZFE-—#F+_-H=+—H

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt et ARBET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ER NG L] 15 131,639 85,401
Investment properties KREME 16 66,251 66,116
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 5,674 8,479
Intangible assets mEEE 18 3,723 881
207,287 160,877
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 179,392 110,659
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 BR 3 I B I 2 4% 20 101,583 88,340
Prepayments, deposits and other  FBFUE « e K H A EUFRIA
receivables 21 69,934 79,883
Financial assets at fair value AV ETABRZEBEE
through profit or loss 22 9290 707
Pledged deposits BEEHEFER 23 1,431 426
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E 8 23 354,724 135,794
708,054 415,809
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B8 SRR ENER 24 94,422 88,867
Deposits received, other payables DUk 4 - Hith B~ ZIE K&
and accruals JEZTE 25 43,119 70,835
Short-term borrowings REEE 26 91,000 100,441
Contract liabilities ERAaE 27 16,424 694
Deferred income B A 28 3,636 3,912
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 1,716 2,325
Income tax payable FEfT RIS BIIR 2,183 1,400
252,500 268,474
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 455,554 147,335
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT R EERRBAE
LIABILITIES 662,841 308,212
9 O GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2022 WR-_ZE - —#+_-_F=+—H

?

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat AR®T T AREFTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred income TEIEU A 28 12,572 16,208
Lease liabilities HEARE 29 109 2,144
Deferred tax liability RIEFIAEE 30 5,360 5,024
18,041 23,376
NET ASSETS EEFE 644,800 284,836

EQUITY R

Share capital A% 2 31 113,799 110,606
Reserves 1 531,001 174,230
TOTAL EQUITY RS 644,800 284,836

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 212
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

LEUNG Tsz Chung

RF
Director

EF

FIE2NEMEEMBREALEFTEN
TR F-A=t-B#HERERET

o WHATALTRERRE

ZHENG Jingdong

EEHEERNEERARA A

BER
Director

EF

R CEFERE

=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

CECCFfZA=+—HIFE

Statutory ~ Exchange  Capital Share
Share Share Contributed ~ surplus fluctuation redemption  options Accumulated Total Total
capital  premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  reserves equity
tEER  ENRD® EARE BB
Ra  RitEE EHER  QEe i i B EZHER REEE  REEE
Notes — RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
WE ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 31) (note 33()  (note 33(i))  (note 33/ii)
(K31) (&3) (30) ()
At1 January 2021 H=%=-%§-5-H 9310 594436 141376 95478 19 54 19749 (105917) (144199 (44,889)
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ ERAIER2EUE
for the year g - - - - - - - 923 923 93
Completion of subscripton and TRARREENR
placing of new shares 31 5050 25354 - - - - - - B35 138
st of shares upon eercise of W ElRiEe
share options Bakh 3 66 6865 - - - - (18%%) Y
Equity-settled share-based payments — ZREEEL
RbRERIONG 2 - - - - - - 60 -6 60
Lapse of share options BREXK b - - - - - - (189) 189 - -
At 31 December 2021 and Ho%=-%
1 January 202 +ZR=1-BR
ZECCE-B-f 10606 91660 141376 95478 19 54 36600 (1006505 174230 28483
Loss and total comprehensive expenses  FRERRZEER
for the year e - - - - - - - (167.040)  (167,040)  (167,040)
Completon of placing of new shares ~ ZAEERHR 3 319 404,186 - - - - - - oatss 407376
lsue of shares upon execise of Wl ERiER
share options Bkiy 3 3 hij - - - - U] - 0 3
Fouitysetled share-based payments  RIHIERE
RbpEwmN: 2 - - - - - - 119605 - 19605 119,605
Lapse of share options BRESH 2 - - - - - - (s 175 - -
At31 December 2022 ut Sk
+2B=1-A 113799 1320815 141376 95,478 155 54 154444 (1181791) 531,001 644,800
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z_—F_-—F+_-_H=1—HIFE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i aF AR® T ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTE
(Loss)/profit before tax BrET AT (EB),FE (164,922) 11,531
Adjustments for: MBS IEFE
Interest income FEUA 6 (432) (82)
Interest expenses FMEFRX 7 4,176 5,559
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WE NEREITE
equipment 15 10,383 8,671
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEETE 17 2,402 954
Gain on termination of lease RIEHER S - (5)
Gain on modification of lease EREE e (13) -
Gain on disposals of items of HEME - HE KR
property, plant and equipment ®EE B W (79) -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 18 416 107
Loss on write-off/disposals of items sy, HEDE - BER
of property, plant and equipment X E BB 2 1,500
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ FEWE 5 BRFN OB E B
impairment loss on trade receivables B,/ RiEEE (1,220) 648
Impairment loss/(reversal of FERERE,CRER
impairment loss) on inventories =) 3,985 (3,382)
Equity-settled share-based RARREEE AR
payments BEBRER 119,605 6,030
Fair value gain on financial assets at BAF(ETABS Y
fair value through profit or loss SEREEY NTEE (141) (707)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment "EYHE 2 AFE
properties (Mz),/ K518 16 (135) 4,763
Operating cash flow before changes LEECEBEAI LS
in working capital Behe (25,973) 35,587
Increase in inventories FEEI (72,718) (68,150)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR K ERE R
A0 (12,023) (44,534)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, JENZE R R A E
deposits and other receivables FIER A, () 9,807 (27,069)
Increase in trade and bills payables BN B SR R ENZE
190 5,555 23,162
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received, BWiLe H B FRIE &
other payables and accruals FEEHE R MOk ) 5,398 (1,644)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred EEWA O ), 150
income (3,912) 20,120
Increase in contract liabilities A RE &N 15,730 694
Cash used in operations KEFTRIRS (78,136) (61,834)
Interest received EHFILE 432 82
Enterprise income taxes paid EREERTEH (999) (1,300)
Net cash flows used in operating RETERFIARSRETFE
activities (78,703) (63,052)
emFeERNaRRERAS —2-—fsrHs O3
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i &+ AR¥T T ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchases of items of property, plant BEMXE WEMZEEE
and equipment 15 (56,855) (68,242)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE WHELREBER
property, plant and equipment MENiEe 21 - (38,001)
Addition of investment properties IS B 16 - (10,850)
Purchases and addition of intangible HEE s EE
assets 18 (3,258) (834)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWZE BEMEKEER
property, plant and equipment FriS 538 311 795
(Increase)/withdrawal of pledged (3h0) 2B E B HEFER
deposits (1,005) 3,354
Net cash flows used in investing RETHFARESREFHE
activities (60,807) (113,778)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
Proceeds from the subscription and g M E AR TS RIE
placing of new shares 374,672 258,591
Proceed from issue of new shares TR B IR R B 1T R AR BT
upon exercise of share options B5IAE 23 55,881
Drawdown of new short-term I EHER
borrowings 36 91,330 133,600
Repayments of short-term borrowings BEEHEE 36 (100,771) (163,299)
Repayments of principal of lease BEHEEAGELRS
liabilities 36 (2,228) (768)
Deposits received for placing of new BB S RIE S
shares 25 - 32,704
Interest paid ERFLE (4,586) (4,710)
Net cash flows generated from METHMESREREFH
financing activities 358,440 311,999
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEYEMER
EQUIVALENTS 218,930 135,169
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHeRBESSEYD
beginning of year 135,794 625
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAERREEEY
END OF YEAR 354,724 135,794
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBEEEBYHERDIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE 354,724 135,794
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company are Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark”) and Market Dragon Investments
Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang.
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(é Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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¢ For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

4

AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following revised IFRSs which
include IFRSs and International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020

The application of the above amendments to IFRSs in
the current year does not have any material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FER#FHET RLIEETERR B 35 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts'
the June 2020 and

December 2021

Amendments to

IFRS 17)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Covenants®
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and IFRS Practice Policies’

Statement 2
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'
Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

Amendments to IAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2024.

The directors of the Company consider the application of
the new and amendments to IFRSs would not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the market at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments,
leasing transactions that are accounted with IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

For investment properties which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
are to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equal the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group’s intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

J the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities that
significantly affect the intellectual property to which
the customer has rights;

e the rights granted by the licence directly expose the
customer to any positive or negative effects of the
Group’s activities; and

o those activities do not result in the transfer of a
good or a service to the customer as those activities
occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers the
grant of licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time at which the
licence is granted

A contract asset represents the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (i.e.
sales-based licensing income of the Company), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled using the most likely amount, which better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESHBRESE)
(continued)
Variable consideration (continued) aEREE)

Notwithstanding the above criteria, the Group shall
recognise revenue for a sales-based or usage-based
royalty promised in exchange for a license of intellectual
property only when (or as) the later of the following
events occurs:

J the subsequent sale or usage occurs; and

J the performance obligation to which some or all
of the sales-based or usage-based royalty has been
allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment or properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use asset and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property but are under construction are presented in
“Right-of-use assets” and reclassified as investment
properties upon the completion of construction.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

J the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022/2023; and

e  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
event occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred
by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the
initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make specifically
identified lease payment, of which some of these lease
payments are contractually due but not paid and some of
them are not yet contractually due, the Group accounts
for the portions which have been recognised as operating
lease receivables (i.e. the lease payments which are
contractually due but not paid) by applying the expected
credit losses (“ECL") and derecognition requirements
under HKFRS 9 and applies lease modification
requirements for the forgiven lease payments that the
Group has not recognised (i.e. the lease payments which
are not yet contractually due) as at the effective date of
modification.

3.

TESHEE®S)

HE (&)

EEBEERHEA(E)
AREIEHE 2%

EWER AR EEE RS RIBEEERME
WELERNEIFARR  WHITRAFE
BRI EREE QA FEELS
AEWER AR AR ANBEINEE

=

7H

BEASERTREEEAR HRHE
WRDPHEARSMDBLAKN - DM
D2EZERBONEREEES BAR
BEEME  MIFSEHBEE -

HEBET

W IRRARNGEK NG — B ONEES
HOREZSESHEBITAK 8
REBRAIRERECERINEEE
% o

KEHE
AEEBREHEBTBETEME
HEFES-—BFHEHEAK ZEIE
BREE 2 AN R EHENR
ERFTHEM D HERRIA

HRMEERR  BUAKRERERE
EEAXNFERERBENEE(E
RE S HERED AN RERST
- mEoEERBZA QR KE
H) AEBEBBEAEBMBREE
AR THMRMEEER(EME
BB MRIEERRE B ER
ARG EHEFR(BIRA K2 8
BARXMNNEERIR)NED AR I
SAARBMNERT M B HARERND
EH e HERAAIRA X H KD H
SRR ERAHEEERTHE -

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS

(S
\W,
'4

?




<

4

y

D

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

TESHEE®E)

BERA

FRENEE 2RI LEEAFE—RE
R T E R ERE G HENE
E)EEMEBENEERNTFAZETE
ENKARN BERSFEEEANLE
BEBRTERENHE L -

EAREEEEAFREREIHE
ZERIMAEENTAFREERGE
—REENENMEXREFA-—REER
e ERRIEEBIEAEREENX
Al 2 R REMMBNIRERA B
BEREMCZ BERAHE -

PrAEEMEERARELHENERE
R o

ShEE

A Hm BLME 7 &= 1B B B8 1) BA TS SRR B -
NZ BRI E B AINEE (SN ) #E
BN R 5 E A EME X
ReMNBMAKR UINEHENER
HEERZAMEREHHBE - R
FEUINESIRMIFEREIRE JHER
FEETERNEREREHHRE
BINEESL A ERIFEKIRR H
REHIRE -

E¥EEMELZBENESHRNE
MAFER

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are required
to participate in central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

3.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deferred rental income

Deferred rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss as other income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Deferred
rental income from a tenant to be released within one
year has been included as deferred income under current
liabilities.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “(loss)/profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are
tangible assets held for use in the production or supply of
goods or for administrative purposes other than properties
under construction in progress as described below are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, as the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Properties in the course of construction for properties held
to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Construction for that purpose are recognised in property,
plant and equipment and transferred to investment
properties upon the completion of construction.

Costs for repair and maintenance activities are expensed
as incurred except for cost of components that result in
improvements or betterments which are capitalised as
part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over their useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties also include leasehold land
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets upon
application of IFRS 16.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs and patents are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on a
systematic basis with reference to projected sales volume,
upon future sales volume of related products.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful life are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets
(continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks or
other financial institutions and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of damages in
value, and having been within three months of maturing
of acquisition.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments
reserve. For share/share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the shares/share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to share capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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4

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHE®E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) EWMITE(E

THEE (&)
THEEZSBLAKTE ()

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income () BEEHACAR KR FBHBA

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other net income and
gains” line item.

HRBEHEKATEZEREE
R BWATIERERNEET
IARERR © R B WA TLE B — I8
TREERAAERAERNX
AECERREREEREZE
BMEERINE T -ER L
REEREZEMEEMS ' 8
TSR FERATIE S
HeREESHEKANERERT
RYUHER - WEERESRT
Az EERRTE E2REE
THEBREERE REEEE
THHREERER B REH
PR BWATIE B RE
AR ARE R R EFR A R T DATE

27
e

BRAHEF A BGZ 2RMEE
THARBHERAGTERELS
BMEERAFEAARGAE-

BAFEFABREZEBEER
BEMEMRZ R VEFE M
NP {EWN S ERRN B m g
RoNIBm AR 2 W BB
FHEEEREREERNZEM
BB FE - S EF AT E I A
R a5 | — 1R o

o
=

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LA

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
on financial assets (including trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances
and cash) which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables which are assessed individually with a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHER#A)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMITE(E
Financial assets (continued) ETHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE (&)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) () EERm@EEEINE)

In particular, the following information is taken into

LER FHEEERREEEE

account when assessing whether credit risk has BN E NYER

increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration o
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market o
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in o
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration o
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse o
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 6
months past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates e
otherwise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 365 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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4

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHER#A)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) EMIAEE
Financial assets (continued) ETHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE (&)
(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets iy EERBEZEMEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBERM#AE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SMIAE)

Financial assets (continued) TEEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEME (&)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TEEIEEEEZFTIERER
The measurement of ECL is a function of the BHEEBEBZTERENN
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the K ENBEER(ANELNR ZE
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and BAN) REARBRA Z K
the exposure at default. The assessment of the o BABMERELNEBEERIZ
probability of default and loss given default is based KA ER AR 2 IBESEE
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking TG -BHEEBEBZ A
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased EREBEINEFHSE UEE
and probability-weighted amount that is determined BHEEANERSEERTE - A
with the respective risks of default occurring as SEKERBATEERIBLRE
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient FRBEEEYHABAIITEES
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a HEIEETEWE SERANTFEREE
provision matrix taking into consideration historical EiE WIEBHEILEE TN ERAK
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking S AE N BN A 1S RO RIS M & BHE
information that is available without undue cost or HHE o
effort.
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —RmE  BHEEBEARE
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group BHENAEENFBEEHNE S
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows AN EEIEE G UREN I T A IR
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at EMEZBNERE  WIKVIIAE
the effective interest rate determined at initial AEETHNERFXALIR -
recognition.
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or MBI EEEEREREESS
cater for cases where evidence at the individual A E R T EKFEFHEIZERNTF
instrument level may not yet be available, the ERER AleRTERUTE
financial instruments are grouped on the aging HESTHE
basis:
e Nature of financial instruments; e SREIAZIHE:
e Past-due status; and o BEHARN K
e Nature, size and industry of debtor. e EBANME HIEKT

%0

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management SSEMREIEE T M AER
to ensure the constituents of each group continue SRR 2 AR TE R 45 B
to share similar credit risk characteristics. ZIEERBR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9/IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
deposit received, other payables and accruals, short-term
borrowings and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(¢) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
approximately RMB131,639,000 (2021: RMB85,401,000)
and RMB5,674,000 (2021: RMB8,479,000) respectively. The
directors of the Company consider that no impairment loss
is required in respect of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount
of the Group’s intangible assets was approximately
RMB3,723,000 (2021: RMB881,000). No impairment loss
on intangible assets was recognised in profit or loss for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

4.

BEREFTHHAERMAET ARER
EXERIRA)
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HED R4 & A RE131,639,0007C
(ZE=—% : AR¥85,401,0007T)
M AR®ES,674,0000( & ——4F ¢
AR #8,479,0007T ) R A AIEEHR
B EHE_E-__FR_FT - —
+-A=Z+—HLEFEE BEARY
¥ BELRBEAREAEEER
BAEEE o

BEEENRE

BV E BN R E MR ES
R(B) REETEERTHER &
REAEL HE R EE LEFE
()RR ELAREFEEEBEN
EHRETATR  (QJBEERREERRE
BUNEREE(NREFEEREE
MR RBEREZHBEFR)N
AT El SRR SCR - RQ)EFTAIRE S
BRAEANEETEZRR 8RR
TR ETER SEE R R - i 5 REE
fAEHEREE < TR E &5 B A K
Bt EEMBREELSEM 2 AR
El&%E - BB RJ LM BERSR
SRR ZRRR RYIER R ) A BEH A
BERIAMA 2 REFRENERNTE -

RZEZZF+—A=+—H K&
EEFEENEMFEOABARE
3,723,000c( —ZE - —F: AR
881,000t )  HEZ_ZT-__FM_ZE
——F+-_A=+—BIFE IT&E
EREERABBBRIESER
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. The Group
reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately RMB179,392,000
(2021: RMB110,659,000), net of allowance for write-
down inventories of approximately RMB4,235,000 (2021:
RMB249,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
past due analysis as groupings of various debtors on
this basis which demonstrate similar loss patterns with
shared credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately RMB101,583,000, net of
allowance for credit losses of approximately RMB147,000
(2021: RMB88,340,000, net of allowance for credit losses
of RMB1,367,000).

4.

BEREHHERAET AREER
EXERRA)

B TRERZENEZERR(E)
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FEEMAR]ERFEBEET
R-FEMIEZRFEAHEERB
A ETEERMETHEHER Y %
EEFTHERERMARBEHEER
HFMEEmOERmEL TeEAR
FEgMEmIEFNTE ML
MEAME - ANEBREFRARER
ZEMBF - RZZTEZ=_F+=A
=+ —HB FENEREEINRTEK
kB A A R 4,235,000 = &
——% : AR¥249,0007T) B L AN
R#179,392,0000( =T =—F : AR
#110,659,0007T )
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4, EREBTHERMGFTTEER

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2022 at
their fair value of approximately RMB66,251,000 (2021:
RMB66,116,000). The fair value was based on a valuation
on these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the graphene-based products segment applied
the technology know-how by applying graphene
in the production of graphene-based ethylene-
vinyl acetate (“EVA") foam material (“Graphene-
based EVA Foam Material”) and slippers, graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips for air purifiers and
air conditioners (“Sterilizing Chips”) and graphene
air sterilizers (collectively as “Graphene-based
Products”) and provision of service;

(c) the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others; and

EXERIRA)

B TRERENETERR(E)
BREY¥ EHE
R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&
M LA A FETE R R E B BRR &
A4 N R 66,251,000 —F = —
F o AR¥66,116,00070)° AF(ETY
BIEBI ARz BEMGEMERS R
ATRENRTSRIAZMEGHERD
HMEEE 2 HE - LBER 2B FH
TRz EeERAEE 2 IREYE

EEBARANER I BESH -

2 EBE

AARBES EELLREE
2HAHERD I MFHE D RERIRE
BERDERRARZN AR E R
HRBER - REME NEBEHOA
EHRMEESEMOT

() BAMERNBEERKEEA
e OREMKEE(TB AR
Ednl):

(b) ARk E o 3P0 A B i AN
ARGREARNEEARE OG-
FEBE 2 % B ([EVAL) 358
B AEBEVAZ B R ki
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) the Photovoltaic Products segment manufactures
and sells cast monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”)
wafers and Cast-mono heterojunction (“HJT") solar
cells and modules, and the provision of technology
licensing service.

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL, fair
value change on investment properties, finance costs as
well as corporate and other unallocated expenses.

Segment assets exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL,
pledged deposits and cash and bank balances as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deposits received, other
payables and accruals, short-term borrowings, certain
deferred income, income tax payable and deferred tax
liability as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

5.

D EER ()
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DHERE)
Segment revenues and results DR F R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT BIRr] 2 NS5 &l H R E
results by reportable and operating segment. BElras R EE DT -
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-—H+-A=+—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based Photovoltaic
Products Products OEM Products Total
EAR BER
Em ER RRER ok

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARETxR

Segment revenue k16
Sales and provision of  FSNREF#HE

service 845 15,411 187,363 70,658 274,277
Segment results THEE (976) 5,012 16,716 (9,132) 11,620
Reconciliation: R
Interest income FEUA 432
Other unallocated net ~ Ef xR D E YA K

income and gains Wiz % 54,070
Reversal of impairment W E FEFURE

loss on trade M

receivables 1,220
Corporate and other PEREMADER

unallocated expenses fl (228,126)
Fair value gain on BRRATEFABGEZ

financial assets at SREEYL

FVTPL AT ERE 141
Fair value gain on REME L TE

investment properties 1% 135
Finance costs BB A (4,414)
Loss before tax B A& 1B (164,922)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEMBEREE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-_—H+-A=+t—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based Photovoltaic
Products Products OEM Products Total
EANE hEE
Em Em HIRE & B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AR%Trx AREFR
Segment revenue k16
Sales to external MR FHE
customers 1,300 5,663 261,709 24,834 293,506
Provision of technology 32 5 T 3% #E R 75
licensing service - - - 20,000 20,000
1,300 5,663 261,709 44 834 313,506
Segment results THEE (673) (1,189) 45,676 24,438 68,252
Reconciliation: P
Interest income Fl 8 WA 82
Other unallocated net  Ef R DB A K
income and gains W3 eE 32,399
Impairment loss on EWE RSB E
trade receivables BB (648)
Corporate and other PEREMARDER
unallocated expenses fi (78,926)
Fair value gain on BRRATEFABGEZ
financial assets at PREEZ
FVTPL NFEEW 707
Fair value loss on REWMEZLTE
investment properties B8 (4,763)
Finance costs AR A (5,572)
Profit before tax R 7% il A 8 11,531
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 December 2022

D EER ()

HHEERAE

AT RRAZHRRELEH DA E
ErAER BB

BE-_ZE_—_f+-A=+—HLEE

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:
Corporate and other

unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Boree Photovoltaic
Products OEM Products Total
BEARE
Efm RREmR WM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARETRT AR®Tn AR%®FTR
DEIEE 691 152,437 321,556 489,779
#E
TERHEMKRDER
EE 425,562
BEHBRE 915,341
PHEE 360 79,388 28,458 116,306
Y
rEREMEKRDE
B& 154,235
BERHE 270,541
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) STHMEEREE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE—E-—HF+-A=+—HILtEE
Graphene-
Boree based Photovoltaic
Products Products OEM Products Total
BEARE ARG
= = KIRE @ FEEE]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARETT AREFRT AREFT ARETT
Segment assets STHEE 1,462 17,736 117,890 204,181 341,269
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other (M K& H b R D E
unallocated assets BE 235,417
Total assets BEBRE 576,686
Segment liabilities 2 H&E 2 1,503 69,320 33,200 104,025
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other ¥ R HE MRS E
unallocated liabilities & & 187,825
Total liabilities BEERE 291,850
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEERE)
Geographical information HEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIREFH Kz
2022 2021
S
RMB’'000 RMB"000

AR®BT R ARETT

PRC (principal place of operations) R (FELEMD) 74,739 51,473

United States of America ("US") FEFER & RE([EE ) 182,730 252,261

South America EEJ 428 576

Europe B 7,027 3,790

South East Asia HmEae 380 376

Other countries =R e 8,973 5,030

274,277 313,506

The revenue information above is based on the A FWHER T EREFAEE
locations of the customers. 40

(b) Non-current assets (b) FREBEE

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BT T ARETTT

PRC (principal place of operations) RE(FELEE) 207,263 160,855
Hong Kong B 24 22

207,287 160,877
The non-current assets information above is based A EIERBEEER HENREE
on the locations of the assets. NEED -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:

DEBER (&)

FEEFMNER

RIEEEE  REFEFPZRFEAE
BE/AHEFE10% A EENT ¢

2022 2021

—E-CF %

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBT T

Customer A EFA 83,534 172,913

Customer B =B 71,011 53,707
The Group’s major customers are included in the OEM REFTERPESIEOEMDE o

segment.

REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
i) the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts and provision of service,
and ii) the provision of technology licensing service.

sk - B A R W is R
Yz IRENA SR B 4 AR RERE
NBERERESMMBENEEES
BEFERRERY - RIR
AR -
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6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6. W - Htlw AR UK 258
(continued) (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) BEFEHABASE

with customers

An analysis of revenue, other net income and gains

Woas ~ E A R s FERH) D

is as follows: fran T -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Revenue Wz
Recognised at a point in time RE— R BRER
Sale of goods and provision of service $4& & % RIZB R 274,277 293,506
Provision of technology licensing RHBIME RS
service - 20,000
274,277 313,506
Other net income and gains Hg A R Wz R
Interest income ) BUA 432 82
Sales of scrap materials SHE BEE 492 35
Rental income from investment KEMENE S KA R
properties less outgoing expenses of ~ HEXZHER ARKEOT

RMB Nil (2021: RMB Nil) ZEZ—F ) 4,475 2,182

Rental income under operating leases K& EFFE4SMNES
YA 343 1,197
Subsidy income* AL A * 2,965 1,207
Compensation for land resumption BB E - 22,158
Over-provision for social security HERESBERE - 4,570
Reversal of long outstanding payables & HiR1E & B Z & D - 745
Gain on termination of lease BIEEE R - 5
Exchange gain, net b H W F 58 42,263 -
Gain on disposals of items of property, HEWE - BE LK E 79 -

plant and equipment 1HA 2 Wa=

Subcontracting income T A 4,366 -
Gain on modification of lease BRI HE W= 13 -
Others Hfth 74 305
55,502 32,486
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * WHEAEMBZSE MmN AE

relating to these subsidies.

PRAGRIF SRS AIE N

o
L —¥
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6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

The Group sells its products directly to customers.
The Group concluded that revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when (i) the goods have been loaded on board for
export sales; or (ii) the goods have been shipped
out from the warehouse for local sales. Upon the
relevant goods are loaded on board for export sales
or shipped out from the warehouse for local sales,
the customers have full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, and have
the primary responsibility for selling the goods and
bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods. The credit terms generally vary from
one to three months (2021: one to three months)
from the date of billing.

For licensing business, the performance obligation
provides the customers with a right to use the
Group’s technology know-how as they exist at the
point in time at which the license is granted. The
Group would receive a fixed non-refundable royalty
income and variable consideration of sales-based
royalty income when the subsequent sales occurs.
Other than transferring the technology know-how,
the Group is required to provide necessary training
before use of the technology by the customers.
Given there is no explicit or implied obligation for
the Group to undertake activities during the license
period to change the form or functionality of the
technology, or support or maintain the value of
the technology know-how, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the Group provided the
necessary training and transferred the technology
know-how.

LA

REMBRRWE

CEFfZA=+—HIFE

6. Wi HAWAR W FEE

(%)
(i)

EFENENEE

AEBEERNRFHEREER-
REBRAEREN EWiEHEE
EEER DNOEYE KMED
OHE © H(NEMELR B EE
HEZHEE - RIEEEYEMN
EHOHESRAREELES
HER BPFEEATEYNSD
HAAMEE BAEEEERE
AEXBET WAEREER

FRAR REERR - EEHR
BENTHEAHE —Z2=F
A(ZZ2=—F: —2=A)-

IREEHME  BHORTET
BEEREEREKREMERAK
S ETFEABAM AR 2 R - K
SERWE —FETENTARE
R EEABRA A REHE
HERERAHE RER 2T
REAEWAZ R ER(E R
BEMABEIN AEBEAREP
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6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

The Group generally collects 1) the full amount of
contracted royalty income when the technology
know-how are provided to customers with a credit
term of 90 days; and 2) sales-based royalty income
that are attributable to a license of the technology
know-how when the subsequent sales occurs.
For sales-based royalty, customers agree the sales
volume with the Group annually and settle the
royalty with a credit term of three months.

The amount for provision of technology licensing
service disclosed above do not include transaction
price allocated to performance obligations which
have been satisfied but not yet recognised due to
variable consideration constraint.

6. W HMWAR K FE

(%)
(i) EFENERNEEE)

7R £2 B — AR UER o AN B JE 1R
HTIEPHZ2RER AR
EREBRA  FEEH/IOKX : K
EELREBEHESBRE X
iy A2 PASHEE AL 2 Fr R
EREBRA -AAHERERZ
RrrEEREMNS  ERE8FHE
AEBEXHTEHE YA=EAD
EEHEBRTEERE -

X R 2 R RS 2
ERTERESIREERVAEEN
RHER BEEETEEKER
AJ AR (B IR I 1 () AR HEERR

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PEFEFENRKBHEL
performance obligation for contracts with ZRZER
customers
All goods or services provided by the Group are A BmASEERE 2 B RE
for contracts with original expected duration of RAGTHTE R R B — F s AR
one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the 1R 1% B R B 75 3 5 E B 851558
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied ZEF BEBEEIREZS
contracts is not disclosed EREN X5 EE-
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have RZEZZF+=ZA=+—8H"
remaining performance obligations for contracts REBUEEPSOFBRENER
with customers. T
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERA
2022 2021
—E-C —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Interest on bank loans RITREAMEE TS
and other borrowings 4,030 5,466
Interest on lease liabilities HE&ERN L 146 93
Effective interest on deferred rental EEHESWAZERFE
income 238 13
4,414 5,572
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

LA

REMBRRWE

8. BRBiAT(EE) FE
AEEHBBAER)/ FEEN

— = — —

R

FH+-A=+—HILFE

\

charging/(crediting) the following items: B (GFA)ATIER -
2022 2021
—EC-CF —T—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®EFTT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 238,754 226,653
Cost of services R 75 X AR - 1,718
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BEKEREITE
equipment 10,383 8,671
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 2,402 954
Amortisation of intangible assets | B EEH 416 107
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNAS(BEES
directors’ remuneration — note 9): Bl —HI5E9):
Wages and salaries ITENH® 88,275 66,274
Equity-settled share-based payments RIREEE ARG,
RER R 119,605 6,030
Staff welfares EBEA 3,426 1,894
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKBHETEI
schemes 6,848 4,156
218,154 78,354
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN & 1,591 1,378
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  FEWE FERZX CRERE ),
loss on trade receivables REEE (1,220) 648
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment  FE&EREEIE
loss) on inventories CRERE[E) 3,985 (3,382)
Loss on write-off/disposals of items of s HEME BEM
property, plant and equipment RBIEE EE 2 1,500
Exchange loss, net b X 1B RFEE - 7,845
Research and development costs B AR 52,370 18,873
Gross rental income from investment KEMEDHHEESWA
properties (4,475) (2,182)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred & : WEWMHE(BIEFERNES
for investment properties (including FARBELEHESWAINE
generated and did not generated BREmX
rental income during the year) - -
(4,475) (2,182)

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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REMBRRHE

wv For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEMSE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the BIEER TR FEQTEN &
years, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules, REBEBERESTATER)RACE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Companies 622GE ) EBENFEESEREET
(Disclosure of information about benefits of directors) HAEMESnT :

Regulations (Cap. 622G), are as follows:

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TF T AREBTIT

Fees (note a) & (note b) we (Kfata) & (KaEb) 630 615
Other emoluments: Hafe -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in —¥4 EAERED
kind (note b) & (note c) BF (Hfatb) X (B atc) 2,613 2,795
— Contributions to retirement benefits — R REFE BT
schemes (note b) & (note ¢) (Ktatb) 2 (B atc) 66 68
— Equity-settled share-based payments —IRREEE AR D BE
(note ¢) R R (M) 21,797 760
25,106 4,238
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive
directors during the current year are as follows:

LA

REMBRRWE

CEFfZA=+—HIFE

9. EERFETHAEME (B

Btat

(a)

BIYFHTES
ANEECNSEMNBIIERTES
RMEIT

(S
\W,
'4

v

2022 2021

—E-= T —F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR T AREET T

Ms. An Na ol Reum 172 168
Professor Zhao Jinbao e REIE 103 99
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAZE S & 172 165
447 432

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2021: Nil).

Non-executive director
The emoluments paid or payable to non-executive director
during the current year are as follows:

(b)

FA-UEENBIIERITESRH
HitpE (ZF=—F: ) -

FHITES
AEZE N ENIENTTE S BB
g (I N

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT
Ms. Lin Weihuan: MIEER 2L+ -

Fee e 103 99
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREWMEF 98 95
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes iR R 1@ 7 5T 214 5% 13 13

Equity-settled share-based payment IR A E AR R AR
NEA 1,817 -
2,031 207

Ms. Lin Weihuan was appointed as the financial
consultant of a subsidiary of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed include those for services rendered
by her as the financial consultant.

MEBLLTEZERARE Z—H
MBARNPEER  H L
BREEERSVBERMIEHRSE 2

e -

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EERFETHAEME(E)

Notes: (continued) Htat: (#&)
() Executive directors and chief executive officer () BITEERITHAR

Salaries, Contributions

allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement

and benefits share-hased benefits
Fees in kind payments schemes Total

BRELE

He BER  NRGRER BUER
ok ENE7 INE BE 5 L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETTR ARETR ARETTR AEETTR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2022  BZE=8==f
TZAZT-BLFE

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung RFEE - 1,129 5,449 15 6,593
Mr. Zheng Jingdong HEREE - 360 14,532 byj 14,919
Dr. Xu Zhi* HFEALH 80 1,026 - 1 1117
Mr. He Shuangquan [ErsE - 584 - 6 590
80 3,099 19,981 59 23,219

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share-based benefits
Fees inkind payments schemes Total

BRELEE

HeoRER R AHEE RIET
e ENER #1150 HEEES 2%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2021 ~ HBE-E=-%
TZAZT-BLEE

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung DEmEE - 1,098 - 15 1113
Mr. Zheng Jingdong PRRAE - 350 - 2 376
Dr. Xu Zhi FERL 84 125 760 14 2,110
84 2,700 760 55 3,599

There was no arrangement under which a director and
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any

FRBERT L E R MITHRAAEN
EFRERECAME 2B (=

remuneration during the year (2021: Nil). T —F ) o
PHERXKE_ZEF—A—
HE+A++B (BEEE)
HAR NS -

* Amount represents the emolument for the period *
from 1 January to 17 October 2022 (the date of
resignation).

o
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

The five highest paid employees during the year include
two directors, (2021: two) details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2021: three) highest
paid employees who is neither a director nor chief
executive officer of the Company are as follow:

hEBEHESR

FRN hERSFEETEMBRE
ECEZ—F MR RENHE
AHBEN EXHIF - AR R EB =4
(ZE-—F: ZR)FEFRFTR
RENESHEENAFENMEH
BT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETIT

(S
\W,
'4

?

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &% - 285 X E Y&

Contributions to retirement benefits R ET IR
schemes
Equity-settled share-based payments ISR E LARR D
BERON K

The remuneration of the remaining highest paid
employees are fallen within the following bands:

579 2,675
45 36
68,358 1,521
68,982 4,232

=

/

HEeSFREZHMENFATE

ol

Number of employees

EE®E
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR #500,0017C
= AR #1,000,0007T - 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,0017C
z= AR ¥1,500,0007C - 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR #2,000,0017C
Z= AR ¥2,500,0007C - 1
RMB6,000,000 to RMB6,500,000 A K #6,000,0007T
= AR #6,500,0007T 1 -
RMB15,500,000 to RMB 16,000,000 AR #15,500,0007C
= AR ¥16,000,0007T 1 -
RMB46,500,000 to RMB47,000,000 AR #46,500,0007T
Z= AR ¥47,000,0007T 1 -
3 3

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FTEHBEX

2022 2021
—E=-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETIT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI SR
Charge for the year FAEF 2,181 2,699
(Over)/under—provisions in prior years BEFE (BEEE)

BETR (399) 1
Deferred tax EAERR IR 336 (392)
Total tax expense for the year FARIBERE 2,118 2,308

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2021: Nil). Taxes
on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated
at the prevailing rates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021:
25%), except for one of the PRC subsidiaries which has
been granted Advanced and New Technology Enterprise
status which entitles the subsidiary to a reduced income
tax rate at 15% for 2021 and 2022.

HRARERAFEERBLEES
EAMWERTG A - I B EFE
MEHBEE(ZE_—F: E) -FE
B FE AR B0 M B TR T IR B AR R RO 3R 1T
- mEREREERRERGE -

RIEFBECEMGEE(EEMER
EDRCEMBEEERGH  BE
F-EEERSFRMCEERNF
BB ARIAER_E-_—FR_F
T FZAI5%HRIEAERRE
AN R EFTE AR R B25% (=
T—4% :25%)e
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
“(loss)/profit before tax” per consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as below:

1. BB )

FARERX B EE N EME
EUW R BRBAT(EE),/
FE I HBRLT -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFLAT(E518),FE (164,922) 11,531
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERABEGTENNIE (30,967) 12,552
Income not subject to tax BARTBA (1,375) (31,277)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose A AT UL B 89 H15E 89
Fs 25,068 23,141
Tax effect of temporary differences REREREER 2 HIA
not recognised 2= (1,410) (396)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERRIBEENH BT E 11,201 672
Tax effect of tax loss utilised E B A AT HAR R A8
not previously recognised BRI GETE - (2,385)
(Over)/under-provisions of income tax in BEFEREH(GRERE)
prior years BETRE (399) 1
Income tax expense for the year FRMBHRAX 2,118 2,308

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate for the withholding tax is
5% (2021: 5%). In estimating the withholding taxes
on dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors of the
Company have made assessment based on the factors
which included dividend policy and the level of capital
and working capital required for the Group's operations
in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liability has
been provided for retained profit as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REBEFBMAEHRE £ BKZAIN
BEEXAIEREETIRNBEAR
10%TEMB - LERER =FZTN
F-A-HRER BAR_ZTZTL
FTZA=+—REHEN - i &
HINRIREEME R EERERT A
ERA) - RIE A B FAFI R R A e &
Ko AEErEREIRT X S5%
(ZF = —% :5%) At ER B
B ARERR —TENF—A—
B2 AT R EX 2 ) 20k ) P B P R A
WIEHBE  RAREFEENEZ A
ARELFE 2RAEENKRER
RERARBRANEELERFTNE
& REEERKF - REE W EL X
FREEMNFTREERARE HE
R £% B R 4 ) 5 O RS = RV B -
BE R ZREN A RARRRAT AL T & 5
[B] o

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. FiISHRAXR#E)

At 31 December 2022, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2021: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company's subsidiaries
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB47,437,000 (2021: RMB27,850,000)
available for offsetting against future profits, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 included
a profit of approximately RMB506,792,000 (2021: loss of
approximately RMB102,724,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note
44(i)).

. DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 and since the end of the
reporting period.

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—80 &L=
B LR ER% gt R RE DI
AN BB A R AR IE &R 8 e
TEHHMmE  WEERRERIELER
HEE(ZEZ—F : &)

R B[R] H BRI A 89 B B 3 488 Bl 75
PRISHE °

R-E-—F+-_A=+—H K&
EMmASHATEBEEHOARE
47,437,000c( —F = —F : AR
27,850,000 ) A] A3 1A 3K 85 oK 2K &
F B R 2 A S B] FRORI - 3 £
REBHEBEEEREEHRBEE -
THIBESER ER A o

. BDEEEARGERE, (B

B)
HE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—HILHF
B AREHEREANEEGRERFBIE
B F 4 A R #506,792,0000( — &
——F: BEHARK102,724,000
TL) BEEAR BB REREE(MF
44(j)) o

- EQILEI\

BE_ZE - -_FT-—F+-A8
=+ —BLEFEARASMEARAK
WEEHIRERE -
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the consolidated loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB167,040,000 (2021: consolidated profit of
approximately RMB9,223,000) and the weighted
average number of the ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) of 1,710,160,978 (2021:
1,591,515,624) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of Shares used to
calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 included the 1,661,909,608
Shares in issue as at 1 January 2022, 50,000 Shares
issued during the year in respect of the exercise
of share options and 50,000,000 Shares issued in
respect of the completion of placing of new Shares
on 14 January 2022.

The weighted average number of Shares used
to calculate the basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 included the
1,486,859,608 Shares in issue as at 1 January 2021,
98,050,000 Shares issued during the year in respect
of the exercise of share options and 20,000,000
Shares and 57,000,000 Shares issued in respect of
the completion of subscription and placing of new
Shares on 19 April 2021.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the consolidated (loss)/profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of Shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic (loss)/earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of Shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential Shares into Shares.

LA

REMBRRWE

CEFfZA=+—HIFE

14. ER(E1E)BF

(a)

(b)

SRER(EHE) BF

BRENEBERARRES
AELHFAGEBEBRHOARE
167,040,000 (= E=—4F : 43
AFEL AREE9,223,0007T) K
FREBRTARAETER
(I Bt 1)z m#EFHTH
1,710,160,978f% (= ZT = —F :
1,591,515,6240% )51 & -

BEstEEZ=—ZE-_—F+—=A1
—t—HIEFESREREE
B 2 I EBIER T
T —-—A—HBE#®BMTH
1,661,909,608% f% {5+ Bt 17 1
A R T A A 31T #950,0000%
R+ LA Kk SRk B TR
R-ZT - —F—A+UHETH
50,000,0000% J& {7 °

Biestegz—=-——®+—H4
=t+t—RIEFESRELRBNK
Rz MEFHEBIER_Z
T —F5—-—F—HEB2#ETH
1,486,859,608% % 15 * 171
EREMTRNRFRNEIITH
98,050,0000% f& 17 + LA & Bt 5EAK
REMEEFROMA T ——
F0Y A+ LHE177#920,000,000
A% A% 15 }2.57,000,0008% B& 17 °

SR#E(BR)BR
Fhig(BER),/ B RER
REFEEAREFAREAEE
18),/ FIBM AR ERT HFRE
A(BE),/ BNREANFAD
BITRAD 2 IR B ARR
R FTE B EEE DR IR BAR IE
BT @R AR IRERE
BITRORD DRI BT & -
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

14. R (ER) B &)
(b) SRBE(EHE) BA(E)

Ay

162

|
Pz

For the year ended 31 December 2022, diluted
loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company's share options as the exercise of the
Company’s share options would result in a decrease
in loss per share, and is regarded as anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
weighted average number of Shares used in
calculating the diluted earnings per share amount is
as follows:

HE-_ZT-_—_F#+=-RA=+—H
IHFE SREEERITIAR
RITEARRBINERE  RAZ
ITEARR RN BRES SRR
EER D KW A REE -

B Z-_—4F+=-A=+—H
I FETEEREER TR
B 2 it BRI T -

2021
—E -
Number of
Shares

e in 2 B

Weighted average number of Shares used in
the basic earnings per share calculation
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

1921

Weighted average number of Shares
used in the diluted earnings per
share calculation

FY
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1,591,515,624

& 208,482,658

AHE S REE RN AT R B 2 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REMBRRWE

— = — —

R

15. MI% - BERRE

F+—_A=+—HILFEZE

\

Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and Motor  andoffice  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
Bl £ER
BF BRERHE RE  BLERE BE%EE RRIR 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Cost: WA
At 1 January 2021 R-5--%-H-H 45,243 33423 1,359 7,409 18,668 - 106,102
Additions byl - 4510 155 306 2415 60,856 68,242
Transfer in/out) g)/(1) - 39,519 - - - (39,519) -
Disposals/write-off HE /Tl - (11,104) - (481) (3.917) - (15,502)
At 31 December 2021 RZB_-F1ZA
=1+-H 45,243 66,348 1514 7,234 17,166 21,337 158,842
Accumulated depreciation: 25T E:
At 1 January 2021 R-F-—-F-f-H 41,668 18,900 1,289 6,493 9,622 - 71977
Provided during the year EREfE 1337 3,051 8 220 4,055 - 8,671
Eliminated on disposals/ e/ hH
write-off - (8,336) - (454) (3917) - (13,207)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--51+-f
=1+-H 43,005 13,115 1,297 6,204 9,760 - 73,441
Net carrying amount: R E
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-51+Z4
=f-H 2,238 53,233 217 970 7,406 21,337 85,401
Cost: mA:
At 1 January 2022 RZE--F-f-H 45,243 66,348 1514 1,234 17,166 21,331 158,842
Additions £ 24,009 26,894 2,255 5 4 2974 56,855
Transfer in/{out) g1/ () - 3,014 235 n - (3,320) -
Disposals/write-off & /Wi - (1,552) - (2,248) - ) (3.802)
At 31 December 2022 RZF-ZF+ZR
=t-H 69,252 94,704 4,004 5309 17,637 20,989 211,895
Accumulated depreciation: 23t E:
At 1 January 2022 RZE--F-f-H 43,005 13,115 1,297 6,264 9,760 - 73,441
Provided during the year £ 436 7,389 257 265 2,036 - 10,383
Eliminated on disposals/ HEBHE /M
write-off - (1,434) - (2,134) - - (3,568)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZFTZA
=+-A 43,441 19,070 1,554 4,395 11,79 - 80,256
Net carrying amount; BEFE:
At 31 December 2022 RZF-ZF+ZR
=f-H 25,811 75,634 2,450 914 5,841 20,989 131,639

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERKEE)
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are L BERREEE X TIF
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates RIFHEGRITE -
per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the lease BF TEIR20F 2
terms and 20 years BaEE
Plant and machinery 10 years 55 K i 25 105
Motor vehicles 5 years B 54
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years Rh-EER 3E5F
office equipment PWNERME
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease HERE FHERSF 2
terms and 5 years BaEE
The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are AEBMNEFHMRFE  BIEFH
held under medium term leases. HERHE-
The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying REFBEHEMERFENARER
value of approximately RMB1,856,000 (2021: 1,856,000 ( — 2 - —F: AR
RMB2,238,000) to secure general banking facilities 2,238,00070) WIEFIEA A EEER
granted to the Group. —RIBITELE A FELR -
As at 31 December 2022, the casting silicon furnaces R-E-_—F+-A=+—H K&
of the Group with a carrying amount of approximately EEEMEE 4 A R®10,965,0007T( =
RMB10,965,000 (2021: RMB10,965,000) are idle assets. T - —F: AR#¥10,965,0007T)H)
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REY=
RMB’000
ARETT
As at 1 January 2021 R-E-—F—HF—H 60,029
Additions at cost b3 DN 10,850
Fair value loss on investment properties WEMEZ N FEEE (4,763)
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-—F—H—H 66,116
Fair value gain on investment properties wEMEZ A ENE 135
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_-#+=-A=+-—H 66,251
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Representing: HER :
Leasehold land HETH 35,670 35,180
Building B¥F 30,581 30,936

o
=
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s properties located in the PRC are leased to
a third party to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 had been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Quanzhou Heyi
Assets and Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd, an independent
professional valuer. In estimating the fair value of the
investment properties, the management of the Group has
considered the highest and best use of the investment
properties.

The Group has pledged the leasehold land of investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB35,670,000 (2021: RMB35,180,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. As
at 31 December 2021, the building of investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB11,137,000 was pledged to secure loan facility from
an independent third party. This loan facility was expired
in March 2022.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

16. REWME (&)

AEBURFEZMERTE=TTA
RRESHEENEERS -

RZEBEZ_FR_F-_—F+=A1
=+ B AEEZBREVENATF
BEERBLREENGER RN
HREEFEEHET MEEBARE T
NRETHE - BEHATIREDENR
TEE AEBEEEDEENTES
MEEANFEAZSREDSE -

AEEEEBREEAFENARE
35,670,000t( =& = —F : AR
35,180,0007T) 2 I B X HFMHEE
T EAAREBER —RIBITTHEN
BR- R-_BE-_—F+-_A=+—
H-BREFEHAR®E1,137,0007T
ZREYMEFNEFERFLE 2B
VE=ZHEAERBEMNER -ZE
ERER-_E-——F=AFm-

ARE 2 RANKAVEHE

TEREHRESRENERAFEETS
AR Bl 2 P ER A B0 Ml (B il B A
BUR) 2 &R ARRBEATHEREZ
WABENABRIEE MR AR
ENBEBARTESRZER(E—
E=RIZER-

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

Fair value Valuation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

16. REWME (&)
FEBMZREVEATLEHE(E)

Significant
unobservable

Relationship of
unobservable

Fair Value hierarchy techniques inputs and ranges inputs to fair value
LD 5y
TEHHUER BAHBHE
AVE AVESH #EFR ZHAHBREE DAFENEE
2022
—ECCE
RMB'000
ARETT
Investment properties 35,670 Level 3 Combination of (1) Benchmark land price: An increase in the benchmark
located in PRC - (2021: 35,180) cost method RMB636 (2021: RMB636)  land price would result in an
Leasehold land and income per square meter increase in fair value.
method
Investment properties 30,581 Level 3 Combination of (1) Newness rate of building: An increase in the newness rate
located in PRC - (2021: 30,936) cost method 89%-91% of building would result in an
Building and income (2021: 91%-93%) increase in fair value.
method
(2) Annual rate of return: An increase in the annual rate
7.20% (2021: 7.20%) of return would result in a
significant increase in fair
value.
(3) Rate of change of annual  An increase in the rate of
income: 1.0% change of annual income
(2021: 1.0%) would result in a significant
increase in fair value.
(4) Estimated market rent for An increase in the estimated
similar building: RMB10 market rent for similar
(2021: RMB10) per building would result in an
square meter increase in fair value.
IR Bl 2 R &M% 35670 F=H  BRAERREE (1) BEHE: §TRARE ZEGELAES|BATE
-HELH (ZB——%: i 6367T(ZT_—F e
35,180) AR¥6367)
B2 REME 30581 F=H  EAERMEE (1) BFREHE: BFERHE LA BATE
—BF (Z2=—F: Ha 89%-91% e
30,936) (ZF=—%F:

o
=

91%-93%%)

Q) FREE:7.20%
(Z2=—%F:7.20%)

(3) FhaEBER 1.0%
(ZBZ—F:1.0%)

(4) EEtsREETES
BYRARKI0T
(ZF=—%:
AE#107T)
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. ERREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HENE ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AREFTT ARETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—%—f—H 4,488 1,178 5,666
Additions i - 5,134 5,134
Write-off sy - (1,178) (1,178)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HR
—E--f—-A—H 4,488 5,134 9,622
Modification of lease HEBIT - (555) (555)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-Z§+-A=t—-H 4,488 4,579 9,067
Accumulated depreciation: RitE:
At 1 January 2021 N-ZE-_—%—A—H 294 839 1,133
Provided for the year FRREE 147 807 954
Write-off HsH - (944) (944)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HR
—E--F-A—H 441 702 1,143
Provided for the year ENEE 147 2,255 2,402
Modification of lease HEEET - (152) (152)
At 31 December 2022 RZIEB-ZH+-A=+-AH 588 2,805 3,393
Net carrying amount; IREFE
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-Z§+=-A=t—H 3,900 1,774 5,674
At 31 December 2021 RN-E-—FE+-A=1+—H 4,047 4,432 8,479
2022 2021
—E--F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREEFITT
Expense relating to short-term leases  E245HAFR & M A EAA 12 B A
and other leases with lease terms EEMNEMEERERNMAL
end within 12 months 16,585 1,867
Total cash outflow for leases FAMEZH R B
for the year 18,813 838

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

V%éﬁﬁﬁ§WH

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

18. EBFLEE

020 Deferred
distribution development
Technology vending costs
Know-how system and patents Total
i 5 7R
0207 8 BA
BiAE EERS RER wE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETET
(notes a) (notes b) (note ¢)
(Kfita) (Kfitb) (Kfitc)
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 W-Z-—%—-F—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,598 1,740,116
Addition iz - - 834 834
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZ=—F
TZA=T-BER
~“Z-"%—f—H 1,587,518 60,000 93,432 1,740,950
Addition g - - 3,258 3,258
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Zf
+=ZB=1+-H 1,587,518 60,000 96,690 1,744,208
Accumulated amortisation and R EHRRE
impairment:
At 1 January 2021 RZE=—F—F—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,444 1,739,962
Provided for the year ENEE - - 107 107
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZ=—F
TZA=1t—-BR
“E-~#—-fA—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,551 1,740,069
Provided for the year FREE - - 416 416
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF
+ZA=+—-H 1,587,518 60,000 92,967 1,740,485
Net carrying amount; MREFE :
At 31 December 2022 R=Z=Z
+=ZB=1-H - - 3,723 3,723
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—%F
+-A=1+—H - - 831 831
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

It represented technological know-how in respect of
the application of graphene and includes one patent in
the US, four invention patent applications, three utility
model patent applications and two utility model patents
in the PRC, relating to the manufacturing of Graphene-
based EVA Foam Material, Sterilizing Chips and graphene-
based pressure-sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula
(collectively “Technology Know-how"), which was
acquired from Bluestone Technologies (Cayman) Limited,
an independent third party, in 2015. The completion date
of the transaction was 16 December 2015.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (*020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. The directors of the Company consider
that the 020 distribution vending system would provide
customers with an interactive and unique shopping
experience, enhance the distribution channel of the
products made by the Group and establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The 020 distribution vending system has definite useful
lives and is amortised over 9 years using the straight-line
method.

LA

REMBRRWE

CEFfZA=+—HIFE

18. B EE (&)

izt -

(a)

EEHEERNEERARA A

EEEOERERNORMAME £
BRR-_ZE-—hFABYE=TEAN
M (FE)BRARKBNERL
EABBEVAEAME RETH
MARGEENERENER —HE
M REAEAENEE  =ZHE
R ER RS RmIEERMIE
MEARBRE T (M A [ B A
Bl RHZTEMBEHA-_E—H
FT-At+RRA-

RMAMBEBEBRAIERFS X
IABERED10F#H -

RZE—RNEFLA AEEEME
B E= WS LG T (10201)
DHEBRAMRT REAAR
#60,000,0007T ° K AR EERA
Q20N HEERGARFPIRETE)
RESHEDER mehArAsE
FEZEGNDEREREYAE
B2z O EMEE N -

Q0N HEERSKAFARAEA
FH WABREDIOFHH -

R CEFERE
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F——

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FH+-A=+—HIFE

18. B EE (&)
BieE: (4)

(c)

In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on Sterilizing Chips, energy storage materials for
batteries and pressure-sensitive lighting devices for shoes
for approximately RMB92,000,000. The directors of the
Company seek the opportunities in applying the graphene
material in products other than shoes and plan to launch
in future.

The Sterilizing Chips has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 5 years using the straight-line method.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount
represented the cost of acquisition of patents for research
and development of manufacturing and application
technology of graphene material on certain products and
patents for research and development of Photovoltaic
Products.

(0 NZZE—XELtA XAEEEEY
AR #92,000,0007T HE F 81 4% 58 32
FEZFREBELREEMBERERR
B REREEGRA
REMEENEREN ARRE
EZREOREMEERREREL
SNEYEE o 2 MEE - 0 BT IR R AR
ﬁo

BRECHEABERAERFH I
AB SR SFHH -

RZTFZZFR=ZFE=—F+=A
=t+—B ZEEAMEERER
MRS T E S 2 £ E & & BT
2 BH R ERRER 2R AU
BB

19. INVENTORIES 19. FE&
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Raw materials and consumables R B N E FE SR 34,676 29,760
Work in progress TR 79,080 66,058
Finished goods RIRK G 65,636 14,841
179,392 110,659

During the year ended 31

December 2022, the

impairment loss on inventories of approximately
RMB3,985,000 (2021: Reversal of impairment loss on
inventories RMB3,382,000) was recognised in the profit
or loss.

BHE - Z-_—_#+-_A=+—HI*F
E REZARRNFERBEOAR
#3,985,0000( -2 - —F : FERH
{E#E [0 AR #53,382,0007T)°
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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X
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20. EWEZRFREKRERE

2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETIT
Trade receivables: FEIE SR -

— Sales of goods —HEREm 95,674 68,215

— Provision of technology licensing — IR ERT
service - 21,200
Bills receivables U E R 6,056 292
101,730 89,707
Less: Allowance for credit losses i EEEE R (147) (1,367)
101,583 88,340

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates,

REBYPR AEBRKE SRR R
FUEEHREERERERRER
HEE DRI DTN

is as follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT AREFITT
Within 3 months 3MEAR 93,842 84,617
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 3,772 3,723
7 to 9 months 72918 A 3,969 -
101,583 88,340

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
past due but not impaired:

20. B E 7 iR R B RE (2)
£ 518 R R (A 1) M R 53 PR K
WS OBRER ST ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR®ET T
Past due but not impaired: BEHERRE -
Within 3 months 3MEAN 3,772 7,831
4 to 6 months 4Z=61E A 3,969 -
7,741 7,831
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly NEFBEREFMNESERTEUEE

on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is
generally for a period of one to three months (2021: one
to three months). The Group seeks to apply strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade and bills receivable
balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
payment record, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Detail of impairment assessment of trade and bills
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 41.

ET MEPRENEEH KA —
EZ@A(ZEZ—F: —==18
R REBEB N BIREEREENE
WHIE - WREEEBEEIFT R
BEEERR =AEEETHRFTS
Hgsn - AR EX il BAEEZ
JEUE SRR N BN R IR B K 2 1A
MNEFER BUEEAEFEER
Ro REEW BB EBEKEZE ZFERAK
EWE IR ERFEE AT R EM
RAGEEMEE EBUREZERERLE
WERHTETE -

BB R RN BRI R % (8
HAEEERTERLENBTE
FoREBBANKDE AARES
RA MNEEERTEEANE
EREEHNEAT2HKE W H
SRYE R B RS -

HE_ZT-_—_F+H=+—HLF
B RURESEIARERERZRE
A FFIRE M4 o
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % F+_H=+—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

— = — —

— =

- \//

21. ENARE - REREABEBUR

(A

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Prepayments: TERTFRIA -
— Prepayments to suppliers — M ERETER R 14,932 7,079
— Others —HAh 2,346 4,336

Deposits: e

- Acquisition of equipment —BEXRE 31,296 38,001
- Others —HAM 222 441
Other receivables H b U 5k T8 3,074 16,133
Value-added Tax (“VAT") recoverable FERISED ([HEET]) 18,064 13,893
69,934 79,883

As at 31 December 2022, other than prepayments and
VAT recoverable which do not have any due dates, none
of the above assets is either past due or impaired (2021:
Nil). The other receivables have no recent history of
default.

Detail of impairment assessment of other receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 41.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL

22.

RZEZ=_F+=—A=+—H KB#
ELME A MBEN KRB R ERIEE
AN FiiEESEa B RE(ZS
T ) E MU GRIE T HA Y
HER A 8% o

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_HA=+—HILHF
& Hib UGB 2R B A F B
RMEE41 »

BRAFEFABERZESHMEE

BAHEFABRZ EMEE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETFT

Foreign currency forward contract INECRHRA A 990 707

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are
mandatorily measured at FVTPL in accordance with IFRS 9.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's foreign currency
forward contracts denominated in RMB or US$ and
the fair values are based on the quoted prices from the
relevant financial institutions.

RIBBIFR B H5 S R E 9%, Lt
BEENREER AR FEA

B2 EHE -

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 &%
EZ2AARERESTEZINERE
AR ATFEDIZEE S M ER G
ZREETE -

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

23. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK

BALANCES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, bank deposits
amounting to approximately RMB1,431,000 (2021:
RMB426,000) have been pledged to secure bills payables
of approximately RMB4,770,000 (2021: RMB1,420,000)
(note 24).

At 31 December 2022, the amount denominated in
RMB included in cash and bank balances and pledged
deposits amounted to approximately RMB17,852,000
(2021: RMB35,606,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earned interest
at fixed rate ranging from 1.45% to 1.55% (2021:
0.55% to 1.75%) per annum. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no history of default. The pledged deposits will be
released upon the settlement of bills payables.

. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

23. CERER RERBRTHEER

HEe_E-_—_F+-_A=+—HI*F
B EBEHARE,431,0000( ==
——F: AR¥426,0007T)HIRITIF
RE BB ANR4770,00000( —F
——% : AR#1,420,0007T ) &Y & -F
ZREERER(FE24)-

RZEBE-—F+-A=+—H" HUA
REAENRE MBITEABRE EH
FERAEHAREE17,852,0000( ==
——% : AR#¥35,606,0007T)° AR
AR BKEMERE A
R 15 P B HNE & B G0 & A5 B - S8
MAEEERTE NEEEESAR
REHEITINE EFEHRITIEARE L8
B EL L FNEE o

RITHSRBRBTERFNEMEDN
FEE R R - BERFRIREE R
1.45% 21 55%MEEFFE(ZF
4 1 0.55% % 1.75%) 5t B o $R1T
KHe kD ERERTREEREEEE
HiR 4D EREERTT - B E W FERUE R IE
DES: F 3 (K

24, ERESRIRARESEE

2022 2021

—E-= B4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables FETE ZRREK 89,652 87,447
Bills payables ANES 4,770 1,420
94,422 88,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

25.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice dates, is as follows:

24, BEHESERRRENSEE#E)
REFWF  AEEENBHERR
FEN R IR T A RIS BRI AT
mT -

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETTT

Within 3 months 31E AR
Over 3 months 3ME A E

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on six months terms (2021: six
months). Bills payable of approximately RMB4,770,000
(2021: RMB1,420,000) were secured by the Group’s
pledged deposits amounted to approximately
RMB1,431,000 (2021: RMB426,000) as at 31 December
2022.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS

72,805 68,770
21,617 20,097
94,422 88,867

ENESERRENEZERETTE B
—RIRANER(ZZE=-—%F: XNEAR)
NEE R -_T-——F+-_A=+—
H AEBEBBEERTROARE
1,431,000 ZE=Z—F: ARK
426,0007T ) & #) A K ¥4,770,0007TC
(ZZF=——%: AR®1,420,0007T)
R BB EL R -

25. BEE HttENRIERE
sTEHA

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Deposits received: BYIES -
— From customers —RERP 142 -
— Others —HAh 214 578
VAT payables JERTIEER 1,367 503
Accruals FEEt &R 22,351 22,117
Deposit received for placing of BB SR D RS

new Shares - 32,704
Amounts due to a director EN—RESK

and a shareholder —HAREIE 832 302
Payables for acquisition of intangible assets J&/{~i& & E 2 & &= T8 3,200 -
Payables for acquisition of property, plant JEMEEEWE  HE

and equipment BT eE 2,189 -
Other payables H e 518 12,274 13,671
Interest payables FETH S 550 960

43,119 70,835

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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25. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 25. BEWiRE HENRERE
AND ACCRUALS (continued) ﬂ%ﬁﬁ(fg)

All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled FMEETERMEMENRIBEHRR
within one year. —FNEE -

BN —R2EEHA R —BRRFKIAE
BN —REEHS( T -_—F %
& NORBE) R BN — R RRE ARS

Amounts due to a director and a shareholder represent
the salary (2021: salary and allowance) due to a director
and consultancy service fee due to a shareholder.

EH-
26. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 26. EHEE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®EF T

Secured bank loans repayable BER—FRNEENBHEART
within one year B (b) 91,000 91,000

Unsecured loans repayable AR—FERNEENEERER
within one year - 9,441
91,000 100,441
(@) At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loans were (@ MZE_ZFER-T-_—F+=

denominated in RMB and bore interest rates ranging
from:

Year ended 31 December 2022 3.90% to 4.44%
per annum
Year ended 31 December 2021 4.35% 10 5.13%
per annum

At 31 December 2022, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of the Group’s
buildings with carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,856,000 (2021: RMB2,238,000), leasehold
land of right-of-use assets and the leasehold
land of investment properties with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB3,900,000 (2021:
RMB4,047,000) and approximately RMB35,670,000
(2021: RMB35,180,000) respectively. In addition,
the bank loans were secured by guarantees
provided by an independent third party, a director of
the Company and his son.

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022

A=1+—8 EFHRARE:T
B WA TBEN B RS

HE-—T-— BFH3.90%
+=—A=+—H 24.44%
HeE—_ZT—-—F HFH4.35%
+=-—A=+—H £5.13%

RZEBE-_—_F+=-—A=+—8"
AEEDREEMAERAMEOAR
#1,856,000C(ZFE=—F : A
R¥52,238,00070) MIEF - BR®E
B # A R #¥3,900,0000( ==
——4F : AR®4,047,0007T) &
% A R #35,670,0000( = &
——%: AR¥35,180,0007T)
MEREEETMAE TR
BYEFHHEELIEAREE
BMFRITEROER - LI
EHRTERB—BBUE=
H—BARREERERTIR
HER
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

LA

REMBRRWE

FH+-A=+—HILFE

27. EEAE

(S
\W,
'4

?

2022 2021
—E-= —ET—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREEFTT
Receipts in advance of performance BT BUWEER
obligation
— sales of goods —HEEMm 9,529 694
— provision of service — REAR 6,895 -
16,424 694

Contract liabilities are related to receipts from customers
for goods and service which were not yet delivered or
provided to customers. Revenue is recognised when

BMARRDERHARIMHERTE
Fz8mKkiR%BEEWREF 2 %A
BR-REmXNHRBRETES

goods are delivered or service is provided to customers. RERERAUNES o
Movement in contract liabilities SREEZEE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFTT
At 1 January m—HA—H 694 -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a EFRERBA MR B BEE
result of recognising revenue FUMeRar
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (694) -
Net increase in contract liabilities as AW E P FIEME N E R &
a result of receipts in advance from fEF 5 (kR F MR AR
customers (net off the aRAE)
contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year) 16,424 694
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 16,424 694

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

28. DEFFERED INCOME

28. IEFEW A

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®ET T
Deferred rental income JRIEFR & WA 7.214 10,126
Deferred subsidy income PR A BL U A (a) 8,994 9,994
16,208 20,120
Represented by: B TIIREREK :

Current portion mEE D 3,636 3,912
Non-current portion EmENE A 12,572 16,208
16,208 20,120

Note: Bt et -

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22
October 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the investment agreement and
related supplemental agreement with Xuzhou Economic
& Technological Development Zone Management
Committee* (RN ERITHAZEREREZEE) on 21
October 2021.

In 2021, government subsidy of RMB10,000,000 have
been received towards cost of capital expenditure in
property, plant and equipment incurred in Xuzhou.
The amount received in respect of the relevant assets
are under the condition that such property, plant and
equipment are not allowed to move out from Xuzhou
for 10 years. With the transformation of the Group,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the business in Xuzhou would be last for more than
10 years and there is reasonable assurance that the
condition would be satisfied. Upon the subsidy was
received, the amount is transferred to income over the
useful lives of the relevant assets (i.e. 10 years).

the English translation of Chinese names or
words in this note, where indicated, is included
for information purpose only, and should not be
regarded as the official English translation of such
Chinese names or words.
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEAE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET AREEF T
Lease liabilities payable: EfHEAE:
Within one year —FR 1,716 2,325
Within a period of more than one year —% &/ & 2 HIfE X
but not more than two years 53 1,818
Within a period of more than two MEERF ZHEA
years but not more than five years 56 326
1,825 4,469
Less: Amount due for settlement BT RBAEE AR
within 12 months shown under 1218 B A& 2 308
current liabilities (1,716) (2,325)
Amount due for settlement FIRRIERBBEET AR
after 12 months shown under 1218l B & 415 2 58
non-current liabilities 109 2,144

30.

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
ranging from 4.53% to 4.59% (2021: 4.53% to 4.59%).

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
asset and liability have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

30.

RHEREERZEE

F4.53%%E459%( — &
4.53%Z4.59% )0

EEHEEE
MENGEAMBRREME & TIE

EHREEERBEE TEIE AR
BWEZETHIBLA SR DT EH I
B

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREEFTT

Deferred tax asset ELEFRIBEE 72 375
Deferred tax liability RIERIERE (5.432) (5,399)
(5,360) (5,024)

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liability and
asset recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

30. EEEHRBEAE )

UTRERMBEFEHRERRZ
ITBREHRBABEREEALES

Fair value
Allowance Undistributed (gain)/loss on
for inventories profits of PRC investment
and credit losses subsidiary properties Total
REMEZ
HEREDE DYE (W) /
FERGEFERRE LR R & @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT NS
(note a)
(Hii#a)
At 1 January 2021 WZE--%-f-H 1173 (3,071) (3,518) (5,416)
(Credited)/charged to (FtAB%)/REEMR
profit or loss (798) - 1,190 392
At31December 2021and  RZZZ-%&
1 January 2022 TZA=1t-8k
“E--%-fF-H 375 (3,071) (2,328) (5,024)
Credited to profit or loss AR (303) - (33) (336)
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZF
+ZA=+-8 n (3.071) (2,361) (5,360)
Note: Bfat -
(@)  The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes relating () ZeBEER_ZT-__FrR=-F%

to the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

o
=
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Number of ordinary

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z_—F_-—F+_-_H=1—HIFE
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of ARBVEEREBITIRA Z2FIEW
the Company are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-C -
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Authorised: ETE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 5,000,000,000/% & E &
each 0.01ETHERR 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHR
1,711,959,608 (2021: 1,661,909,608) 1,711,959,608f% (= ZF = —
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each F 1 1,661,909,6080% ) FAk
E{E0.013E LR B A% 113,799 110,606
Ordinary shares EER

shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of
each ordinary shares ordinary shares
BREEO
EnMEER
88 LEREE LEREE
Us$'000 RMB'000
TER ARETT
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, WZE-—F-F-HF-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 “F--5f-A=T-H
“ToCE-A-RR
“E-CFt-A=t+-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMR:
At 1 January 2021 RZE=-%-A—-A 1,486,859,608 14,869 99,310
Completion of subscription and THREREENRA
placing of new Shares 77,000,000 770 5,050
Issue of Shares upon exercise of share options — FMTERERERE{TRG 98,050,000 980 6,246
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RE-—F+-A=+-ARK
“E-"%-f-H 1,661,909,608 16,619 110,606
Completion of placing of new Shares TREEHRRD 50,000,000 500 3,190
Issue of Shares upon exercise of share options  RTERRIERETMRH 50,000 1 3
At 31 December 2022 WZ2-—#+-A=+-H 1,711,959,608 17,120 113,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Ordinary shares (continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
24 March 2021 and 19 April 2021, Mr. Lin Dongliang,
an independent subscriber, subscribed for a total
of 20,000,000 new Shares of US$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$4 per subscription share (the
“Share Subscription”) and the Company placed a total
of 57,000,000 new Shares through a placing agent
at placing price of HK$4 per placing share (the “2021
Placing”). The Share Subscription and the 2021 Placing
were completed on 19 April 2021. The net proceeds
from the Share Subscription and the 2021 Placing (after
deducting the relevant expenses) were approximately
HK$79,700,000 and HK$226,720,000 respectively.

As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated
30 December 2021 and 14 January 2022, the Company
placed a total of 50,000,000 new Shares through a
placing agent to two placees at the placing price of
HK$10 per placing share (the “2022 Placing”). which was
completed on 14 January 2022. The net proceeds from
the 2022 Placing (after deducting the relevant expenses)
were approximately HK$497,850,000.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme include, among others, the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, employees,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, consultants of
the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-
controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries.
The 2011 Share Option Scheme became effective on 28
January 2011 and expired on 27 January 2021, after which
period no further options will be offered or granted but
the provisions of the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects with
regard to the share options granted during the life of
the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The 2011 Share Option
Scheme was refreshed on 10 June 2019 in the annual
general meeting.

31.

32.

& NE))

ZER(E)

MARBBBHA-_ZT-_—F=A
—tHRAE-E-_—FMA+HLBZ
N — B IE LR EE AR R % & A
ERBERMDIBETRBERBES KL
20,000,0000% & f% I {E0.013E JT A 57
B (TRHORBIBEIE]) RAR G RIB
EREBUSGRESKRH4BTRE
B A& A ££57,000,0000% ¥ I ([ =
E-—FREEHE] -BROHRBEEE
FoE - —FREEFHEERZ=—
FHA+ILBAZEK BRORESFER
TR FRESEMBRIBFE
(MBREERZ®E)D O A
79,700,000 7T }2.226,720,0007 7T, ©

RARNTRPA-_ZT-_—FE+_A
ZtARZE-_—_F—A+HWMHEZA
AR ARARBBREREUS
% e & A% 19 B2 & 18 1078 T (M) R 44 74 AR
A& 4 ££50,000,0008% # A% 15 ([ =
E-FEBEEFHE]) BERF
T —A+WMHTERK T -~

i85 BR & SRS I F (LM
FEREF 18 ) %) /5497,850,0007 7T

URGDAEBRNNRZRS
AABURELEE 2 BIRESTE
N_E——F—AN\B RNRBEE
—IEERERE([ S —— F A
TE) BEERARNSEER 2K
EH BRIz G BB MERERE R
W —E——FHEREFEESER
SEERFBE(EFBE)RARAIES
(REBIENTEST) A5EHE
B EmIRGHER TP M-
ViN/NEI L BN N/NETL N = N g S )
FEPEARAR R c —F — — FEERET 2
- ——F%—A -+ /\HBES
WE—ZE-_—F—H=-+tH3H"
BERTHE— SR L HERE
BT ——FHEREEBERHAA
BEzERENS ———FBER
RERT B IESCA P Efih 5 T i 4 35
TRHBARER —F——FERRE
FEIERZZE—NEAAATHRER
BAFRG FESRH-
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

On 2 July 2021, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of granting options to select eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre persons
and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group. Eligible participants of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme include, among others, the directors, including
independent non-executive directors, employees,
contractors, agents, representatives, suppliers or
producers of goods or services, licensors or landlords,
customers, licensees (including any sublicensees),
distributors or tenants (including any subtenants),
consultants or advisers to any area of business of
any member of the Group or any invested entity, any
shareholders, business or joint venture partners of any
member of the Group or any invested entity. The 2021
Share Option Scheme became effective on 2 July 2021
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date, i.e. 1 July 2031,
after which period no further options will be offered or
granted but the provisions of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects with regard to the share options granted during
the life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme.

32. LRGABERNTIRZRE

(#&)

RAT AR RELE 2 BIRESTE
(4&)

R-ZB-—F+A-H KNRABRHK
FERETE( T - — FHEIRET
g BEMEECAERSHER
MR BB S i RS B A
AR AEBIEN 2 BRI R EAREE
REREBESEEAT KRS HARE
EEBEMANER - —_E-—FH8
BREFEESER2EERRER(ESPR
)RS BERKE QB S AE A %
EERIMNEKEHINERAES(R
EBIIENTEE) BB - ABH-
RE KRR Bl RGHERSE
Efl A AREE  BF 5FEE
BABREMNBRETEARA)
NiEEEF(BREMSHEBER):
BIAAKEER  AEBEAKE AT
TR E BN MARER %75
HEBYE  — T —FEERETE
M- -+ A -BHEAES BIE
EEUESEE] BRI H%E R+
FARBFAERBNZE=ZZE=—F+tA
—H) EETHE—PREFEHE
B BT - —FERETEE
WHARE 2 ERENS  — S =—
FHRERETEIMBEXAMEEMTE
1 4 1 R O R
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, 2021 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the relevant class of Shares in issue from time to time.
Subject to the limit above, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) and at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit
is refreshed. The maximum number of Shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
2021 Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

/I

32. UROBERNTRZRS

(#)
223 0 A PR A 5 AR 58
()

RIE ETRE RRIE B —— 4
RSB = = — AR R BI R
AR AL A RS B2 2 e
MR ATE 2 BT B BTSN AR
TR TEITZRNHEE 2 EBIR
FH AR TNSHRBEIEDEITHEBER
R 230% ° 7 Lt PR EEARR T -
RIS~ — FHBEH B R AEE
7 51 155 4 0 7 45 PR AR AT
BT TR RBME A
S BBR L B BRARA ARER
BEA® L IOEB I 8RR
A B 87T D 210% ([ 3t &1 R
7). R+ = {87 A - RIE—
T FREEHEET S ARGS
%2 MR TR 2 BERA K
B AR RHR B BTG 2 1% AR -
15 B IR 2 ) X A R
SRR IR AR LA -

BYARBES TBTHRABSLE
ERRAWEEMEA L 2 BAE
ARBUFAITEST LA L I
S REH BBEN+ @A HE
AR FARRRERBRIRIFILIE
HITEFAWEFETAMEAL ZEM
FBREREC HITA0.1% RRER
BENEREREEAHE+ @A HE
Py W B &t H 2 #{E/8 185,000,000
B AIERBRRNRERAE EE5E
HEVE ©
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

An offer of the grant of share options under the 2021
Share Option Scheme may be accepted within 21 days
inclusive of from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
from the date of the grant of the particular share option
subject to any early termination of the 2021 Share
Option Scheme which shall not exceed the period of 10
years. The exercise of any share option may be subject
to a vesting schedule to be determined by the board of
directors.

The 2021 Share Option Scheme does not specify a
minimum period for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the higher of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares on the
date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

32. LRGABERNTIRZRE

(&)

AT UAREEE 2 BIRET S
(%)

RIE-_T - —FBEREEREBR
BZBHRBHBM(BRER)E
AT RABARAZNERERE
1BTTR T AR » FriR BB 2 17
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—F - FMRE SRR
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LR AEBRNSRZRS

(continued) (&)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company RATUREEE 2 ERESTE
(continued) (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the FRNRE T —FERETEE
2011 Share Option Scheme during the year: RITER BN T -
2022 2021
—EB-CE —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price share options exercise price  share options
mEFH BRE N BiRE
@ A 1fefE ¥R
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January ®—A—H 0.55 214,750,000 0.59 313,600,000
Granted during the year FREN - - - -
Exercised during the year FERITHE 0.540 (50,000) 0.69  (98,050,000)
Lapsed during the year FRKM - - 0.67 (800,000)
At 31 December R+=ZA=1+—H 0.55 214,700,000 0.55 214,750,000
During the year, the Company has not granted any share FA T ——FEREGEIET
option (2021: Nil). 50,000 (2021: 98,050,000) share ARRBEREEMNBERE(ZS
options were exercised and no share option was lapsed ——%:#8)0 50,0000 (= E=—%:
(2021: 800,000 share options were lapsed due to the 98,050,00017 ) B IR 1T K8 A
cessation of employment of the participants) under the BERYRE R ( —ZF ——4 : 800,00017
2011 Share Option Scheme. BRERZ2EEZELIERBEARNE
e
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

The outstanding share options under 2011 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2022 were vested to the
grantees in the following manner:

- 62,220,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

- 41,480,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

- 66,600,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2020 with an exercise period from 22
October 2020 to 21 October 2025.

— 44,400,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2021 with an exercise period from 22
October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

The outstanding share options under 2011 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2021 were vested to the
grantees in the following manner:

- 62,220,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

- 41,530,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

- 66,600,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2020 with an exercise period from 22
October 2020 to 21 October 2025.

— 44,400,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2021 with an exercise period from 22
October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

-wmagf
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32. URBAEBNNARZRS
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AKATURELE ZIBIRESTE
(&)
R-E-_—F+-_A=+—B#¢ ==
—— FERERTEIIE T HARITE R
LT YA RE T RIRA

ZEEMRER62,220,0000 2R
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the
2021 Share Option Scheme during the year:

/|

32. UROBERNTRZRS

(%)

AT UAREREE 2 BIRET 8
(&)
FAN-BEZT - —FERESEIN
RITERBRAENT

2022
—E=-=
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price share options
¥ BRE
TREE #E
HK$

7T

At 1 January m—HA—H
Granted during the year FREH
Exercised during the year FRNITHE

Lapsed during the year FRARK

At 31 December B+=—A=+—A~

During the year, 54,000,000 share options were granted
and 2,260,000 share options were lapsed due to the
cessation of employment of the participants under the
2021 Share Option Scheme.

The outstanding share options under 2021 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2022 were vested to the
grantees in the following manner:

- 14,007,600 of such share options were vested on
21 January 2022 with an exercise period from 21
January 2022 to 20 January 2027.

9.62 54,000,000

9.62 (2,260,000)

9.62 51,740,000

FRN R —FHERETEET
54,000,00017 f& A% # & &% & &
2,260,0001) fE A% i A 2 B2 & 4% 1 &
BRI R R AR -

RZE-—_F+-_A=+—HBH® =%
T FERERTEIIE TR ARITHER
LT Y FA B TRIRA

—  ZEHEIIEN14,007,600(0 B R
B _F-HA”+—-HEBE
TERE—_E_—_F—A=+—
BT +F—HA=-+H-
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LR AEBRNSRZRS

(continued) (%)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company RAT AR RELE 2 BIRESTE
(continued) (&)

The outstanding share options under 2021 Share Option RZBE-_—_F+_A=+—HR=ZF

Scheme as at 31 December 2022 were vested to the —

FREAIAERT BITR T M ARTTERBR

grantees in the following manner: (continued) IR TNH A REE TEBEA (&)

21 January 2023 with an exercise period from 21
January 2023 to 20 January 2027.

- 7,098,500 of such share options will be vested on —

21 January 2024 with an exercise period from 21
January 2024 to 20 January 2027.

- 7,098,500 of such share options will be vested on —

21 January 2025 with an exercise period from 21
January 2025 to 20 January 2027.

- 7,098,500 of such share options will be vested on —

21 January 2026 with an exercise period from 21
January 2026 to 20 January 2027.

16,436,900 of such share options will be vested on —

ZEEMER16,436,9001 18R
—E-=F—A=-+—HEE
TEPE—_E_=F—H=Z+—
AE-"F-+F—H=-+H8-

% 5 B % HEH97,098,50017 #5 7
—E-MF—-—A=-+—HEBE"
TERAE—E-_ME—H=-+—
HE 2 +F—HF-+H-

% 5 BB I RY7,098,50017 #5 A
TR —-A=-+—HEE-
TEREAE-_ T -_RAF—HA-+—
HE-_E-+F—HA_-+H-

% SR REHY7,098,50010 #5 7
“EoRF-AZt+—BRE-

TERA-—ZE-NE—HA=-+—
HE_Z_+%—H_-+H-

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REMH R SR ITE BT
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period BRITEHMT :

are as follows:

2022

—EgE=-=

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BRERE TEESRET 1THEH

51,740,000 9.62 21 January 2022 to 20 January 2027
—E_—_f—-A=-+—-HE=-ZE=-tf—HA=+H

111,000,000 0.55 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025
—EC-EFtAZ-+ZBE=-E-HAFt+A=1+—H

103,700,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023

—E-NEXNAT+HABE=ZE=-=FXxA+tN\AH
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
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32. UROBERNTRZRS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

(%)
AT UAREREE 2 BIRET 8
(&)

2021
—E-—F
Number of Exercise price
share options HK$ per share Exercise period
A2 TEESRETT 1T 5
111,000,000 0.55 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025
R R+ A+ ZBAE_ZE_RAFTHAZ+—H
103,750,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023

—ZE-N\FEAAt+tABEZZE-_=F,A+N\H

The fair value of the share options granted on
19 June 2018 was HK$17,289,000 (equivalent to
RMB14,576,000).

The fair value of the share options granted on 22
October 2020 was HK$25,183,000 (equivalent to
RMB21,627,000).

The fair value of the share options granted on 21
January 2022 was HK$222,745,000 (equivalent to
RMB181,577,000).

The Group recognised total share-based payment of
RMB119,605,000 for the year (2021: RMB6,030,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

RZZE—N\FXATHLBRLHER
e AT(EA17,289,0008 T (HEER A
FR#14,576,0007T)°

R-_ZE-_ZTF+A-_+_BHRENE
A% A A B &25,183,00058 T (A8 E 7
AER#21,627,0007T ) °

RZE-—F—A-+—BREMNE
A% #E N {E /222,745,000 T (HHE
MAR181,577,0007T)

AEBRAFERARD R L AER
EERARD BERNMNRETAR
#119,605,000C( ZFE=—F : AR
#6,030,0007T ) °

INTAB TR T FE M R 4 I 0
SR IR B BB R = I A
B it o

TRIVRAT AR B AR

2022 share options

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)
Exercise price (HK$ per share)

Expected volatility (%)

Expected life of options (year)

Risk-free rate (% per annum)

Expected divided yield (%)

Exercise multiple — director

Exercise multiple — employee

R _FERE

I RE(ZRET) HK$9.61
TEEERET) HK$9.62
TEHAR 18 (%) 58.44%
AR TEHFE(F) 5 years
ERRFE(FF%) 1.34%
TEHARR B EE R (%) 0.00%
TEEH-—EF 2.80
TEEH—REE 2.20
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
5 years. The expected life and exercise multiple used in
the model have been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

During the year, no share option was lapsed under 2011
Share Option Scheme. For the year ended 31 December
2021, 800,000 lapsed share options with fair value of
approximately RMB189,000 which previously recognised
in share options reserve had been transferred to retained
profits.

During the year, 2,260,000 share options were lapsed
under 2021 Share Option Scheme and the relevant share-
based payments of approximately RMB1,754,000 which
were recognised in share options reserve was transfered
to retained profits during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, 111,269,560 Shares may
be issued upon the exercise of all the share options
to be granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 6.50% of the total issued
Shares as at 31 December 2022 and the date of this
annual report.

32. LRGABERNTIRZRE

(#)
2 23 0 A PR A B AR 5T 8
()

T8 ER 4 VB TR B K 2 A S AR
RS IRIBETE - LA 2 A4
R T (S B E RIS E R E 2 B A
HORATEE TERHRTAA
SRR HE T AR -

R EAFER TESANEREE
P 2 ELA R o

—SER A B R S 2 AT
18 o £ B ERARIE 2 A T F 2 B
KRR TS A 2 B - AR
BEERTET IBRROTAE
s -

FN R ——FERETEIETR
BERERN -2 T -—F+_A
=+—HI-FE - 800,000 2 KK
BERRIEREREBERNAFEY
AFR#189,0007 2 B =R G

FRN R —FHERETEET
2,260,00017 BE P A K80 B R A BB A%
RERBTERAE 2 UKD BERE A
KE AR ¥E1,754,0007T B 7> A 82 5

EREEH]

R-E-__F+-_A=1t—H =F
T FEREEIE T TRE A
EERRERETER B %7
111,269,560 %0 - HHERBEZZ
T+ AT B RAFERS
HEAZ &2 317D 2 #96.50% °
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 214,700,000
(2021: 214,750,000) share options outstanding under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 12.54% (2021: 12.92%) of the Shares in
issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 214,700,000 (2021:
214,750,000) additional Shares representing approximately
12.54% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 and additional share capital
and share premium of approximately HK$16,740,000
(equivalent to RMB14,953,000) (2021: HK$16,746,000
equivalent to RMB13,692,000) and approximately
HK$100,308,000 (equivalent to RMB89,602,000) (2021:
HK$100,329,000 equivalent to RMB82,029,000), before
issue expenses.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 51,740,000
share options outstanding under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 3.02% of the
Shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
51,740,000 additional Shares representing approximately
3.02% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 and additional share capital
and share premium of approximately HK$4,034,000
(equivalent to RMB3,603,000) and approximately
HK$493,705,000 (equivalent to RMB441,012,000),
before issue expenses.

/|

32. UROBERNTRZRS

(#&)

RAT AR ELE 2 BIRESTE
(&)
RZEBE-_—_F+—-_HA=+—H 'K
RAIR T ——FHEREAZET
# 5214,700,00015( = & = — % :
214,750,00017 ) &) A< 17 {88 #9 i A i -
HRZABEEITRMA12.54% (=
T=——F:12.92%) BEARFIRE
BARERE BETEZEERITED
i A 4 % 28 B RE S 86 17214,700,000
fE( = & = — 4 : 214,750,000/ )
B HEERNBEE—_ZTE-_—_F+=A
=t+—HARBZMEEITRD 2L
12.54% R EEIMNR AR R I 10 i@ B (R4
BrEFTTHISZ) 2 5416,740,0007%8 7T
(HE R AR%14,953,000T (==
——4F 116,746,000/ 7T lHE N A
R #13,692,0007T) X 47100,308,000
& T(HEE BN A R ¥89,602,0007T )
(ZZ = —% :100,329,000/ 7T ' 18
BN AREES2,029,0007T)°

RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H &R
AR T - —FHERETEE %
A51,740,00017 14 7 17 {5 A B A 4
HRZ BB #TRG 43.02% °
RIBEARNGREGENER BE8ITE
ZE M ARTTE BB AR R A BEE S
% 7751,740,0000% i 0 1 & R 8 =
—E - F+ - A=+—HARA
2 EE BTG Z 493.02% K 58 5h
BARBD E(RMNBRETHAI)
5 Bl 494,034,000 TT(FHE R AR
3,603,0007T ) & #9493,705,000/% 7T
(FHEN ARE441,012,0007T)°
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

()

Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and Asia Equity Value Ltd
(the “Subscriber”) on 21 June 2012, Best Mark
lent 32,000,000 Shares to the Subscriber. Upon
initial recognition, the value of such contribution
amounting to approximately RMB12,183,000 from
the substantial shareholder was accounted for as
a deemed contribution in the shareholder’s equity.
The carrying amount of such contribution from
the substantial shareholder is not remeasured in
subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to Best Mark the
right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at a
strike price of HK$1.01 and Best Mark has granted
the Subscriber the right to require Best Mark to
purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the same
strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.

LA

REMBRRWE

CEFfZA=+—HIFE

33. &
REMRBESHEE AEEEE
S RIEHEFN A E L -

EfRHR
RZZE—F—H++£H " dTIC
Capital * A AR R HERRFT LA
T B &R R BB &
R ETHEBE T ——F—
A=+ \B KD REE s
BEZH  FABRBREBRELER
AR M BR o B L - A B EUL R
o M EE % - R LT B EE
TMBREEEBEROARE
57,768,0007T & il 85 17 #2 £ = fx
R ANEHRG-

BER-_FT——F<A=+—8H
Best Mark&2Asia Equity Value
Ltd([ ZRB& A 1) 7] 32 19 18 A%
% ' Best MarkA 2 B8 A& H A%
1932,000,0008% ° 7 ¥ 15 T 3R
% EEETEREITENEELY
A AR12,183,0007T 0 RILE
B=B AR ARIETE B
AEERFIELAVTERMER
HEFEATEH A=

RZZT—Z—F L A+ B Best
Mark 2RI AGI L — D H&ES
([RERZLBEERE ) &
It 288 A fIBest Markd® i LATT
f# 81.01/8 7T B HBest Mark
32,000,000 f% {7 K9 F + M Best
Mark[A) 7288 A% H Z5kBest Mark
LAME B 77 6 {2 B8 §32,000,0000%
B BORERI o

RZZE—NFE+-F++H AR
A %&Best Mark& A1+ 32,000,000
[ B% 15 B B R B8 A 8 3 FBest
Mark @ R M h BEREREH
FrEix 5 e 41k -
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33. #EE)

(ii) Statutory surplus fund (i)
In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses
of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve (iii)

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEEBRAES
BIEFBEAEEEARY  NEE
HEHREIK B R RZERETE
FEBRBZRN(SEBE TR
THEER)WA)METESD
LLEBREEFTRSBAEE HE
NELEHEINEFMRER
50% A& 1E AE BB AES B
BRSSP BN B A A A RETHE
B AETHRBEFEERNS
THR - FTERM S RBALTHH
MBARMESSHE -

B R B B
(R B B R ERE P BRIEI
BB ISR PTE LB —YISNE
ZR DIREERA MWK T
3FTEE AT BUR ARRER IR ©

34. COMMITMENTS 34. EiE
The Group had the following commitments at the end of REBR DIRERFRAG A TAIE

the reporting period:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARBTIT

Contracted for capital commitment in BRG] A& AEE -

respect of:
— Investment in subsidiaries — B R R E
— Other investment —HEigE

Contracted for commitments in respect of: A8 I8 B KET 4044 -

— advertising and consultancy services — EE MR ARTE
- research and development contract —EEH
— property, plant and equipment o ZE N B

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022

2,100,562 2,046,855
5,000 -
2,105,562 2,046,855
26 329

- 300

5,608 26,190
5,634 26,819




35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

All of the properties held by the Group for rental
purposes have committed lessees for the next 5 years

(2021: 5 years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. WEHERH
AEEE/HAA

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE

AEBRRIVESMFENREME
EARAF(ZZE=_—F: AF)EH

ETHYAEFEA ©

MEZ RIER KA ENZNT

\

follows:
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
+ZHA=+—-—8 +t-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREEF T
Within one year —FE R 1,736 2,035
In the second year F-F 1,517 1,833
In the third year BE=4F 1,517 1,593
In the fourth year ks 11 1,593
In the fifth year ERF - 9
4,781 7,063

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

36.

FH+-A=+—HIFE

METBRELEEBEZHR

TRALAEERETHDAELE R
528 ERACKIFACED R
BEYMELZRERRESRESRN
FRKASREKENAREGRAR
ERERANDBERERBAELEZ

BeREMNZFRAE

activities.
Bills Interest Short-term Lease
payables payables borrowings liabilities Total
EfZE EARRIE BHRE HERE @it
RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 A\_F--5-f-A 12,600 (i 130,140 342 143,193
Addition 0 - - 133,600 - 133,600
Repayment of short-term borrowings ~ EEEEEE - - (163,299) - (163,299)
Repayment of bills payables S (12,600) - - - (12,600)
Repayment of principal of lease EEfgaEr2
liabilities - - - (768) (768)
Drawdown of bills payables ROERRE 1,420 - - - 1,420
Interest paid BTAE - (4,617) - (93) @710
Interest expenses R - 5,466 - 93 5,559
New leases entered L - - - 5,134 5,134
Gain on termination of lease BEREYE - - - (239) (239)
At 31 December 2021 and R-EZ-5+ZF=1t-HR
1 January 2022 “E-CF-A-H 1420 960 100,441 4,469 107,290
Addition )| - - 91,330 - 91,330
Repayment of short-term borrowings ~ EEEEEE - - (100,771) - (100,771)
Repayment of bills payables ERERRE (9,990) - - - (9,990)
Repayment of principal of lease [EEHEEER2
liabilities - - - (2,228) (2,228)
Drawdown of bills payables RIERES 13,340 - - - 13,340
Interest paid BITAE - (4,440) - (146) (4,586)
Interest expenses R - 4,030 - 146 4,176
Gain on modification of lease BimEE - - - (416) (416)
At 31 December 2022 S b 4,770 550 91,000 1,825 98,145
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated

37. BEAXXRS

financial statements, the significant related party

transactions are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group is as follows:

B B RE L HDFREN
EAWHZZHBNT -

AEBTZERABNMESIT

\

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Other emoluments: HEMe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  # %  2BI R EWHZER 4,623 1,820
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKBHETEI
schemes 129 76
Equity-settled share-based payments LIRS E RN BER
VAR 72,717 1,521
77,469 3,417
Transactions with the EAIE VAR AR SR IT B Y
companies controlled by RAEIZRS :
non-controlling shareholders:
Sales of goods HEE M 12,555 14,914
Purchase of material HEME 2,993 -
Licensing fee income REBWA - 20,000
Utilities expenses IKEE 2,989 432
Rental expenses HES 5,500 658
Consultancy fee BHE 17,959 22,467
Purchase of equipment WERE 17,335 -
Outstanding balances with the ER JE 2 s AR BR 428 1) Y
companies controlled by NA)Z ARFEGRER
non-controlling shareholders:
Trade receivables FEWE 5B 12,470 24,483
Other receivables H b JE W R IE 4,127 4,790
Deposit of acquisition of equipment BEEXREz RS 15,648 13,980
Trade payables e E 5 B8R 373 188
Other payables H A JE A RIE 12,919 3,234
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 26) net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

38. EXEBER

AEEERREN §EFEBELE
BT BRAEENERT
SEEE MARRGERARE-
AR R R B T

AEENEARBREGEFHE(E
mEE(ME2e)(HERERREF
EY))RARBHEE ARIEER(E
REBITERA - FEERRE )

ARABEEGLFRN —RENE
BAFRBEH—& D ARRIES
EREARRAREEREREBER
ReREARBEFNEZ ~A5H
HEBS RS BITH R BEK
AR B TR B B IR B B IAF
BMEEREREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE_—_FT-—F+=-H=+—HILFZE
39. RERETWEMIA
R-IB__FR_FT-_—F+_H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at 31 December 2022 and 2021

StHt-HENSBEeRIAREEN

are as follows: T
Financial assets LRIEE
2022 2021
—E-C-& —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREF T
At fair value: R E -
Financial assets at FVTPL WAET AERZ REE 990 707
At amortised cost: R SEA AR
Trade and bills receivables (note 20) JEUE SRR R =R (F7220) 101,583 88,340
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEBRMNFIE 2 REM
deposits and other receivables ERRENEREE 34,592 54,575
Pledged deposits EEHER 1,431 426
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTTHE5R 354,724 135,794
493,320 279,842
Financial liabilities cREaE
2022 2021
—E-CfF —Eo-&
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial  liabilities at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
ROATE }Xﬁﬁﬁ BATE \W\?ﬁﬁ
FTABR  RAHE SABE RAKGEE
WemeE HNEpas am NEREE MeRal ke
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR AR%TR AREFT ARETT ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities:  3EfT42#BE -
Trade and bills payables (note 24)  FEfTE B8Rt I et
SB(Hi24) - 94,422 94,422 - 88,867 88,867
Financial liabilities included in AEHEENIRS  Ef
deposits received, other payables  JEfTZIE K BT EF
and accruals kA=l - 43,119 43,119 - 38,131 38,131
Lease liabilities (note 29) REARHH29) - 1,825 1,825 - 4,469 4,469
Short-term borrowings (note 26) 2 EE & (A17226) - 91,000 91,000 - 100,441 100,441
- 230,366 230,366 - 231,908 231,908
SHEHFERRFERERAT —S-_FFERE
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMNT

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Other than the investment properties disclosed in the
note 16 in the consolidated financial statements, some
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

40. AV {ERE
AR EAR B S R E R A PR
BHERMEERSBAMNATE

Brir B M RARM 16 BENREY
N REERPR AEBNET
TREERTRABRAFERNE
TREVZEFeREENERAGBR
FEEESX(LERMANMGET
EREAE)NBRER -

technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at Fair value Significant Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 31 December 2022  hierarchy unobservable inputs and key input(s)
R-E-ZF+ZA
tREE ZST-ANATE  ATEESR EXTAEERAE REAEZRETERAE
Financial assets at FVTPL RMB990,000 Level 2 Quoted exchange rate Future cash flows are
- Forward contract (2021: -ranged from 6.33 estimated based on
RMB707,000) to 7.25 (2021: forward exchange rates
6.48 t0 6.50) (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period)
and contracted forward
rates
BRATFEGABRL AR #990,0007T F-R FimEX ARRERENBEREEER
tREE (ZF=—%: —#EH6.3357.25 (BE2RBRTBREHE
—ERHEH AE¥707,0007T) (2% L) REHIE R
6.48%6.50)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during
the year.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

FAN - FE—REE R EWEER -

RBERSNIReAEESRMEE
kE@MAHzAFE
ARBEERR NEAMBHRRIZ
BERNIENEREENERAR
MARE(ERE A FERS -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits, cash and bank balances,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
deposits received, other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and short-term borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

41. BBEREEEEREE

AEENFESMTARERATE
SAABBZEREE BRESHER
LkERRE BEHEBANTIE R
REMERHRBENEBEE CEH
TR ReRRTESR BHE SR
AEENRE Bt lize H
ENRENEFERNERAE
HERBELREMEE ZEERTA
MFBREMERE -

AEBEERTANTIZ2RRBREINE
Rk EERR - MEER RBHES
J\ e B 7 am (B S LR o T SCELSI AN e]
BREZFRBRHOBR EEBEER
EL1RaE R - DARER BB A0 Rt
BREVEE M

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z_F_-——4F+-_H=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BEEREEBEERBERE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk S B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such rEEERSEBRAR  T2REN
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing En((Ex) RBT(AETEERN
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong HERX G RREEH -

dollars ("HK$").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TERETVRZMER  WAEHME
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible ERFIE NEBRTA(ER)

change in the US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other FEEET R B TLIERNSIER]
variables held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before FE B o
tax.

Increase/

(decrease) in
US$/HKS rate

(Decrease)/

increase in
the Group’s
(loss)/profit

REBMBRBLAT
En/BrEX (F8B) 7B
ERH(TE) (TEK) E£#H
%
2022 —EC-CF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE 5
If HK$ strengthens against RMB W T H AREAE 5
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETHARERE (5)
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARERE (5)
2021 —EC--F
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE 5
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT HAREE 5
If US$ weakens against RMB METRARERE (5)
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARKERE (5)
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency REERKGIWEINEE B - BE
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign BEERINERR TERNETEER
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant ZB¥EIPERINE R o

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade receivables
which are assessed individually with a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

For financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, the Group makes individual assessment
based on industrial factors, historical observed default
rates and adjusts for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. No impairment
was recognised by the Group on financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables during the
current year.

The Group’s credit risk on bank balances and cash is low
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk
because all bank deposits are deposited in or contracted
with several banks with good reputation and with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. No recognition of ECL on bank balances,
restricted bank balances and cash is considered necessary.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the US (2021: US), which accounted
for 59% (2021: 65%) of the total trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2022.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 16% (2021:
60%) and 69% (2021: 96%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

41.

HEEREEEREREEKE)

EER B KBENM
RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H K&
BFfARAS A RERTEEME A
AEBEERBABEBIOZKEER
% TR B RNMER A BT RS AR R R AT 51 B
EHCHEREMEENRMAE-

RBEERREERE NEEERE
BeZRkEENHEEEERFERR
BHEEE UNERHEMEER
P AT IR & it Ui (20 780 H3 5 TR SR ER IR 3
178 = thoh - R B & A BIFR Bf 7%
BEERFESRRIZBAMEEERR
7\ FE B 55 R SRR P 13 AR ek 3
B EETEBRIRER A it
ME ARAREERLS AEENIE
SREBREAEREE-

RESERMNNER B hEMER
RENEMEEN S AEBERET
ERZ BEABREOXEFEL
Arfd e W BANE I ER A S
NENAI RS Z BIRE I ERHETTHRE -
AREERAFEERERE S EFRNK
BHe hEMEYGRIENEREE
FERRIRE ©

AEBRTEBMAS ZEERRS
K ERESEXEESTER RE
RAERITEFOEFEENRZREER
i BEBREEFARBETREER
AP RAT BAGRITHES  XIR
BRI TAE 88 S IR S SR TR BR(Z ERUME

AEFZMEBUEE YN EERRE
EEREXH(ZT=—F : £H)-
ERER = E-_—F+=-A=1+—8H
MEKRZEZFERLEREEAED
59% (=T = —%% : 65%)°

rEEBEEFEERRE  REZEY
BoEAREREBRERTENI6%(Z
T —F:60%) 269% (=T = —
F:96%)BDRRERASEN &
ABRERAREF -

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

41. BEEREEBEERBERE)

EE R RO E RS ()
TR EREBCTTAERERE

that has been recognised trade receivables under the SEFRCEHEREESECEE-
simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HE 2 HiFEH
FEEE FEBE
(BEERME) (E8RHE) mat
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTTT ARBTTT ARBF T
At 1 January 2021 R=-FE=-—-F—H—H 609 570 1,179
— Transfer to credit-impaired — RS EERE (609) 609 -
— Impairment losses recognised — B MERBEE B - 653 653
— Impairment losses reversed —REEERE - (5) (5)
— Write-off — W58 - (436) (436)
— Exchange adjustments —[ERFE - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2021 and N-E—-—F
1 January 2022 +=-B=4+—-HR
—E_"f—-A—H - 1,367 1,367
— Impairment losses reversed — R EEERE - (1,220) (1,220)
At 31 December 2022 R-BZZHF
t-B=+-8 - 147 147

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over one year past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short-term
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The short-term borrowings, cash and short
term deposits are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income
and expenses are credited/charged to the statement of
profit or loss as earned/incurred.

B ERBURNER AEREEY R
B B U IR H) R A A (B A
BRRIEABERF KEWE S
FERCBHEB—F UREER
) RS H IR Z AR

ESL
AEETEN TSRS (AR
SR ER B R E BRE R -

NREBTHESRENTIEEEUE
BEMZAK SHEE BeRE
IR B EK AN MAe TS
By ZBWARTHRIBRERAE
DBRE CELTIAER % -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s net (loss)/
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

4. BHEREEEERBRE)

FEER ()

TRETMAALMEBRETE
AR ERFA (B8), I FE (7
BEEYE)WHEZABTREY

H BRI -

(S
\W,
'4

?

Decrease in Increase in

Increase in profit before loss before

interest rate tax tax

R B AT RR B AT

I = 48 0 F R 183 N

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBFTT ARBFT

2022 B —F 1% N/A 91

2021 —ET—F 1% 1,004 N/A
Liquidity risk RBELREKR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings, internal resources
and external facilities provided by an independent
third party as significant sources of liquidity. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has fully utilised the short-
term bank loan facilities (2021: fully utilised short-term
bank loan facilities).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

ERSHETRERERE T H NEBEE
REUEREEERRENRNAEE
LEMFEReMASEFEYKTE A
BERERSRENDNFE - BE
BERRITEENERBR  LHER

%

BETERRA) -

AEEKRBIRITEE AHERKAH
BB =T RHENIINBREEARD
EeHBERF- N T - —_F+—
A=+—H ZrE£EEEZEHAEH
RITEXRME(ZT=_—F : BEBH
BRMEERITEREBE)-

TRAVAEBTES R B ENR
TEMBEBER -ZRREAEEA
ERESERNRTAHERAEDN
ARBERREREMRR - KM IEITAE
TR AGEMNIIE R ARG EEE BB
MiE - WRBEMNERANSHERE

SBFLRRNEERARAT —S-—FEERS
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve

at the end of the reporting period.

41. BEEREEBEERBERE)

REBETEE(E)
RERHR - WA SRBFEHFE:
APRBRR S BBIR M R e aRat H -

2022
—EBC-F
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but Total
months less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
SR
t=fiR BE-% f ot AHR
ARNERR BOR=% BHREE RERELE BEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%T R AEETT ARBT R N
Non-derivative financial iabilties: HiteRet:
Trade and bills payables (note 24 ERESENRENRE
(Hiit24) 94,422 - - 94,422 9%,422
Financial liabilities included in deposits 2% MHS  EfERTER
received, other payables and accruals ~ EHERMSRAR 43,119 - - 43,119 43,119
Lease liabilties L 2,320 623 86 3,029 1,825
Short-term borrowings RHEE 92,985 - - 92,985 91,000
232,846 623 86 233,555 230,366
2021
—E-—%F
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but Total
months less than lessthan ~ undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
t=fER BA-F BAZE N
JRELH BIR=% BAREE RERBLE HEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Non-derivative financial liabilties: HTEeRER:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) LS Ve
(Hiit24) 88,867 - - 88,367 88,367
Financial liabilities included in deposits ~ B4%Z MRS EfEMNTER
recelved, other payables and accruals S ERMSRAR 38,131 - - 38,131 38,131
Lease liabilties HEAR 2,488 1,869 383 4,700 4,469
Short-term borrowings RHEE 102,737 - - 102,737 100,441
232,223 1,869 343 234,435 231,908
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group’s products include rubber, plastics, silicon and
graphene. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the
prices of these raw materials which are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group
historically has not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity price
changes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There was no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

41.

42.

43.

EEHEERNEERARA A

HEEREEEREREEKE)

FBE S AR ()

P BN HIE BB RIS 2 RIS
R T A ERIEOTE SR
8ENEEIHHE TARBETE
AEE) -

7 B AR LB
AEESEEMNEIERMABER
B 2B ERLAEE ANEEHER
ERMEHEHKRIERNCEZERMHE
1R B ) LR » FR A BHE AR K B A] BE
HAKBENMBRAEINEFE - K
SEEEY B EAEMITELR
AR BE IR B B AR K& ©

HAREE
RZE-__FR_FE-_—F+=A1
—t+—BEERHAREGE-
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, XRQ T 2 BRI &
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E=-= —E -
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

it AR®T T ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN L] 24 22
Interest in subsidiaries AHE R AR 1,109,219 207,431
1,109,243 207,453
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR FRIE - R e R EAE
receivables W kT8 2,142 3,111
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT4E % 165,804 65,264
167,946 68,375
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and B Uiz4 « H i e
accruals FIENFEETE 1,994 1,724
Deposit received for placing of new BBl EFRIE S
shares - 32,704
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B A B R IE 1,097,545 1,097,546
1,099,539 1,131,974
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEETEEHE (931,593) (1,063,599)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 177,650 (856,146)
EQUITY i
Share capital ¥ 113,799 110,606
Reserves G i 63,851 (966,752)
TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) #5425 (B A& 4t) 177,650 (856,146)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s ARAREEFENR_T-_=ZF=A
board of directors on 31 March 2023 and signed on its =+t —BHAERBETE WHANLT
behalf by: ATREKREE -
LEUNG Tsz Chung ZHENG Jingdong
PRI BIER
Director Director
- E

o
L —¥
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —ZF—

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

i)

44, AR T 2R RET(E)

(S
\W,
'4

v

Btat
Reserves of the Company ) ARAEHE
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
REE EHES BARERE  BRERE ZitEE a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTr  ARETR  AR%®FTn  ARETx
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%-f-H 594,436 395,026 524 49,749 (2,212,969) (1173,234)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FRBIER AR A
for the year - - - - (102,724) (102,724)
Completion of subscription and placing ~ EARERE &R
of new shares 253,541 - - - - 253,541
Issue of shares upon exercise of share ~ INTFERESXTRN
options 68,625 - - (18,990) - 49,635
Equity-settled share-based payments EREEE IR ARES
fi5t - - - 6,030 - 6,030
Lapse of share options BRERT - - - (189) 189 -
At 31 December 2021 and RZFZ-§+tZA=T-H
1 January 2022 kZ%-Z%-H-H 916,602 395,026 524 36,600 (2,315,504) (966,752)
Profit and total comprehensive income  EMFIER2ENEEE
for the year - - - - 506,792 506,792
Completion of placing of new shares ~ TRXEEHR 404,186 - - - - 404,186
Issue of shares upon exercise of share ~ FTIEBRER AR
options 21 - - )} - 20
Equity-settled share-based payments IR R AR
fi5 - - - 119,605 - 119,605
Lapse of share options BIRELN - - - (1,754) 1,754 -
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZETZAZT-8 1320815 395,026 524 154444 (1,806,958) 63,851
LEFERRBEEREGRAT —S-—FFERE
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, KD B 2 BBEMRRET(E)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued) Bat ()

ii) Going concern of the Company ii)

The directors of the Company are aware of the capital
deficiency in the Statement of Financial Position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021. In assessing whether
the Company will be able to finance its future working
capital and finance, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Company is able to operate as a
going concern by considering the following:

1) The majority of the liabilities of the Company are
amounts due to direct or indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries. The Company would consider all
available source of funding included but not limited
to, requiring the subsidiaries to declare dividend or
waiver of current accounts.

2)  The 2022 Placing was completed on 14 January
2022 in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. A total of 50,000,000
Shares have been successfully placed by the
placing agent to two placees at the placing price
of HK$10 per Share. The gross proceeds and
the net proceeds from the 2022 Placing were
approximately HK$500,000,000 and approximately
HK$497,900,000 respectively. Reference is made
to the announcements of the Company dated 30
December 2021 and 14 January 2022 respectively.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that it can solve the liquidity issue of the Company.

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2022
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Place of registration/
incorporation and

Issued and fully

— = — —

R

Percentage of equity

?

45. RRAEEMB R ANFHE

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ER/EMALE  BROREH
£ Rewy BREX RAREGEREADL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hi &
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers and
investment holding
BEHERERAT &k 10,000 7T 100 - EBERERREAR
Quanzhou Baofeng Shaes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
("Quanzhou Baofeng”) of slippers, sandals and
casual footwear
FMNEBEXERAT i AEE - 100 HERHEEEE RER
([FMEE]) 544,229,0007C N k=
Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
BEHH () BRAA B 10,0007 7T 100 - maey
Astute Sino Developments Limited ~ BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
EERRARLA AERUBE 100% 7T 100 - EEEX
2D Material Technology Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Investment holding,
Company Limited trading of Graphene-
based Products and
provision of service
WEHRRBRAR LA BE 1007t 100 - REpk BEERBRER
RIRER
2D Material Technology Limited BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
AERUBE 100 100 - EBEEXR
Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB22,051,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
Technology Company Limited* of Graphene-based
("Xinfeng 2D") Products, provision of
technology licensing
service and investment
holding
BREME_EMHMBEERAF* #E AR% - 100 REREEARBEM
([FEe—#)) 22,051,0007 AR RERS Rk
EER
Fujian Caidian Keji Company Limited* PRC RMB1,150,000 - 100  Sale of Graphene-based
("Caidian Keji") Products
BREREMBAREEL A e AR% - 100 HELEREM
(TERBRIR]) 1,150,0007C

EHEFEBRNEERARIR —B-_FFEHRE
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OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of registration/
incorporation and

— = — —

R

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Issued and fully

FH+-A=+—HIFE

(%)

Percentage of equity

45. RRAEEMB R ANFE

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BR/HMRIR EBRORER
£ ok HREX FAAEEEREDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk

Golden Solar (Hong Kong) Solar Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 - Investment holding
Material Company Limited

e (BB AGEHBERRR  B% 1,000,000/ 7T 100 - REBR

Golden Solar Silicon Science & PRC RMB324,904,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Technology (Xu Zhou) Co., Ltd.* sale of Photovoltaic
("Golden Solar Xuzhou") Products

EBEERR (RN ERAR  HE AR - 100 BERHEXNRER
(TeBEM]) 324,904,0007C

Golden Solar (Quanzhou) New PRC RMB68,334,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* sale of Photovoltaic
("Golden Solar Quanzhou") Products

B (RN FERNRBRAR  HE AR - 100 BERHEXRER
(TeBEMI) 68,334,000

Golden Solar (Fujian) New Energy ~ PRC RMBO - 100 Dormant
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Golden
Solar Fujian")*

REEBHERRIUERAT e AREOT - 100 EEe%

(MERzkl)*

* Quanzhou Baofeng, Xinfeng 2D, Golden Solar Xuzhou
and Golden Solar Quanzhou are registered as companies
with limited liability (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong
or Macau legal person) under the law of the PRC.

# Caidian Keji and Golden Solar Fujian are is registered
as companies with limited liability (wholly invested by a
wholly-foreign-owned enterprise) under the law of the

PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 December 2022 and 2021 or at any time during the

year.

. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2023.

* RMNEE HE—& 2BRMNED
BN BRETBAEEMOBR

BEERAR (BEREABE) -

o REBNEEERREEEARIEEDEA
BRAMOBREERAR (IEKRE

TLEENBE) -

RZFE_—FK
=+ — B AFE TR BEN

— = —

—_——

JB R BIBITEMERSES

. REMBHRZAE

FEMBHRRLEFEN T _=
= A=t+—B#E R -
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Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited

TR R R IE AR B R AT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RS SEMAILNBRERR)

Rollable Solar Awning
HEI\V K EEE T

For Carport EHEFH

For Recreational Vehicle tREIEEFH

www.goldensolargroup.com
Stock Code:1121
i UaE: 1121

Rollable Solar Module
HEN K IHEAE N
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